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Dell Bank International d.a.c.

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors present herewith their report together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

Dell Bank International d.a.c. (the “Bank”) was incorporated on 15 August 2011 and is an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of Denali Holdings Inc., incorporated in the United States of America.

The principal activity of the Bank is the provision of financing solutions to end users of products and
services sold by Dell entities in Europe. This includes leases and loan arrangements, rentals and asset
management facilities to all Dell business segments and with third party providers.

In 2013 Dell acquired the Dell related assets, sales, servicing functions and platform from CIT Vendor
Finance Europe. The CIT-owned Dell asset portfolios migrated to the Bank as part of the completion of
that acquisition (the “Acquisition”).

On 1 November 2014, the Bank acquired a €28m portfolio of receivables and leased assets at fair value.
These receivables and leased assets principally relate to financing of Dell equipment.

The Bank provides financial services to customers based in the United Kingdom, Ireland, Belgium, the
Netherlands, Luxembourg, Germany, Austria, Switzerland, France, Italy, Spain, Portugal, Demark,
Sweden, Finland, Norway, Iceland and Poland. The Bank operates its only branch in Spain. The Bank is
regulated by the Central Bank of Ireland ("CBI") and has an Irish banking licence under the Central Bank
of Ireland Act 1971 (as amended). The Bank is subject to the CBI's Corporate Governance Code for Credit
Institutions and Insurance Undertakings 2013 which imposes minimum core standards upon all credit
institutions licensed by the CBI. The Bank is not required to comply with the additional Corporate
Governance Code requirements for High Impact designated institutions.

Business review

The results for the year and statement of affairs of the Bank are shown on pages 23 to 24. The loss for
the year before taxation amounted to €10.6m (2014: loss of €6.9m). After recognising an.income tax
credit of €1.3m (2014: tax credit of €0.4m), a loss of €9.3m (2014: loss of €6.5m) was transferred to
reserves. Total Bank's assets amounted to €900.6m (2014: €689.1m), liabilities to €700.3m (2014:
€519.5m), and equity to €200.3m (2014: €169.6m).

Net interest income for the year is €20.1m compared to €14.4m in 2014. Interest expense for the year is
€12.7m compared to €10.1m in 2014, up €2.6m or 25.7%, mainly due to an increase in the funding
requirements of the Bank in line with business growth. Interest income for the year is €32.8m compared
to €24.5m in 2014, up €8.3m or 33.9%, mainly due to strong growth in originations.

Other operating income for the year is €56.5m compared to €64.8m in 2014, down €8.3m or 12.8%
mainly due to the fact that Bank no longer writes operating leases.

Operating expense for the year is €65.8m compared to €71.5m in 2014, down €5.7m or 8%. This
decrease in operating expenses was primarily driven by depreciation on operating leases (€5.0m),
Operating expenses includes depreciation for both the primary and secondary term.



Dell Bank International d.a.c.

DIRECTORS' REPORT - continued

Trading expense for the year is €16.0m compared to €12.2m in 2014, up €3.8m or 31.1%. This increase
is primarily driven by the euro weakening significantly year on year against the majority of the Bank's
hedged currencies. This loss is primarily offset by the foreign exchange gain of €12m (2014: €10m) in
operating expenses on retranslation of the Bank’s monetary assets and liabilities.

Impairment charges on loans and receivables

The loan impairment provisions charge for loans and advances to customers for the year ended 31
December 2015 is €5.5m (2014: €2.5m). Total provision balance of €6.7m (2014:€2.9m) represents
1.0% of total loans and advances to customers (2014: 0.6%).

Dividend
No dividend was declared for the year and no interim dividends were paid by the directors during the
year. The net loss for the year will be transferred to reserves.

Research and development
No research and development activities were carried out by the Bank during the year.

Principal risks and uncertainties
Risk management is an integral part of the Bank's business process.

Details of the Bank’s Risk management objectives and policies are set out in the Risk management report
on page 8 to 20.

Directors and Secretary

The names of the persons who were Directors at any time during the year ended 31 December 2015 are
listed below. Mr Colin Keaney resigned on the 26 March 2015 as a director of the company. Mr. Thomas
Luttrell was appointed as a director of the company on the 1 February 2015. Unless otherwise indicated
they served as Directors for the entire year.

Cormac Costelloe

Colin Keaney (resigned 26" March 2015)

Don Berman

William Wavro

Donal Courtney

Frank O'Riordan

Tyler Johnson

Thomas Luttrell (appointed 1st February 2015)

The names of the persons who were Secretary at any time during the year ended 31 December 2015
are listed below. Unless otherwise indicated they served as Secretary for the year.

Catherine May (resigned 23 September 2015)
Kate Brennan (appointed 23 September 2015)



Dell Bank International d.a.c.

DIRECTORS' REPORT - continued

Directors’ and Secretary's shareholdings

The Directors and Secretary had no interests in the shares of the Bank or any other Group company
that are required by the Companies Act 2014 to be recorded in the register of interests or disclosed in
the Report of the Directors.

Events after the reporting year

There were no material events subsequent to the year-end which would have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Under the Companies Act 2014, the Bank converted to a type of corporate structure called a “designated
activity company”. From the 1st February 2016, after approval from the Companies Registration Office,
the new name of the Bank is "Dell Bank International Designated Activity Company.”

Political donations
No political donations were made by the Bank during the year to 31 December 2015.

The measures taken by the Directors to ensure compliance with the Bank's obligation to keep adequate
accounting records, as outlined in Sections 281 to 285 of the Companies Act 2014, are the use of
appropriate systems and procedures and the employment of competent persons who report to the
Chief Financial Officer and ensure that the requirements of the legislation are complied with. The
accounting records are kept at Innovation House, Cherrywood Science & Technology Park,
Cherrywood, Dublin 18.

Disclosure Notice under section 33AK of the Central Bank Act
No notice has been issued to the Bank during the year to 31 December 2015 by the Central Bank of
Ireland.

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. In concluding that the going
concern basis was appropriate for the Bank for the 31 December 2015 financial statements the directors
have taken various matters into account. Refer to Note 2 to the financial statements.

Future developments

Future expansion into EMEA is under consideration. Dell and EMC Corporation have signed a definitive
agreement under which Dell, together with its owners, Michael S. Dell, founder, chairman and chief
executive officer of Dell, MSD Partners and Silver Lake, will acquire EMC Corporation, while maintaining
VMware as a publicly-traded company. Until the transaction closes, Dell and EMC remain separate
companies and will continue to compete in the marketplace. Upon potential closure of the transaction
this could provide additional growth opportunities for the Bank.



Dell Bank International d.a.c.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT - continued
Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ report and the financial statements in
accordance with Irish law.

Irish law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law
the Directors have prepared the financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (IFRS).

Under Irish law the Directors shall not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the Bank’s assets, liabilities and financial position as at the end of the financial
year and of the profit or loss of the Bank for the financial year.

In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:

e Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
State whether the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS and ensure
that they contain the additional information required by the Companies Act 2014; and

* Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the Bank will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to:
e Correctly record and explain the transactions of the Bank;
* Enable, at any time, the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Bank to be
determined with reasonable accuracy; and
* Enable the Directors to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2014 and enable those financial statements to be audited.

The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Bank and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irreqularities.

Auditor

The Auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, will continue in office in accordance with section 383(1) of the
Companies Act, 2014.

Approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 23 March 2016.

On behalf of the Board of Directors:

Wb bh D PO

Chairman Director

William Wavro Cormac Costelloe
23 March 2016 23 March 2016
%@

DiréEtor

Thomas Luttrell
23 March 2016
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Dell Bank International d.a.c.

RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT

Introduction

The Bank’s approach to ascertaining and monitoring the primary risks and uncertainties it faces is
informed by identified risk. The Bank's operations involve, to varying degrees, the evaluation, acceptance
and management of these risks. The risks that the Bank faces are mitigated by the use of controls which
form part of the Bank's risk management framework.

Senior management are responsible for the management of risk on a day-to-day basis, under the
oversight of the Board. The Bank has implemented a risk culture which promotes transparency and has
established a risk governance structure that is supported by an appropriate Risk Management Framework
and Risk Appetite, reflecting the size, complexity and risk profile of the Bank.

Risk Framework

The Board and senior management have designed the Bank's Risk Management Framework and the
Internal Control framework to support the Bank's Risk Appetite. Each Framework regards managing risks
as an essential part of successfully operating the Bank. Senior Management continually review the
operations of the Bank and assess the level of risk in line with the Bank’s Risk Appetite, its policies and
controls, changes in its products and services, and changes in the market place in which it operates.

Risk Appetite

The Bank's Risk Appetite is expressed in both qualitative and quantitative terms. The Bank’s risk culture
is based on the risks that the Bank faces and how they are managed; taking into account it's Risk Appetite.
The Bank has defined internal governance structures and arrangements, including an organisational
structure with defined lines of responsibility; a Risk Management framework designed to promote
sound and effective risk management, including identifying, measuring, monitoring and ensuring the
management of the risks to which the Bank is exposed; and an Internal Controls framework designed to
support adequate internal control mechanisms.

Material risks are deemed to be those risks which may impact the Bank's ability to deliver on its business
plan, service its customers, operate in a legal and compliant manner, impact the Bank's brand and
reputation or cause financial loss exceeding Risk Appetite tolerances. Non-material risks are deemed to
be those which do not impact the Bank's ability to deliver on its business plan, service its customers,
operate in a legal and compliant manner, impact the Bank’s reputation and brand. Non-material risks
may cause financial loss within Risk Appetite tolerances.

The Board, as supported by Senior Management, is responsible for setting the Bank's Risk Appetite and
risk tolerance at a level which is commensurate with its business plan, the expectations and requirements
of its parent and the Central Bank of Ireland. The key material risks that have been identified are as
follows:

Credit Risk (including Credit Concentration Risk)
Market Risk

Funding & Liguidity Risk

Residual Asset Value Risk

Operational Risk

Balance Sheet Measurement (includes Funding Risk)
Reputational Risk

Regulatory Compliance Risk

Business & Strategy Risk

Group Risk
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Dell Bank International d.a.c.

RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT - continued

For each material risk the Bank has defined a risk tolerance level, monitoring and reporting metrics and
a comprehensive framework for managing risk which includes policies, internal controls and
management information. The Bank also monitors other risks which have been determined to be non-
material.

Three lines of defence model

The Bank utilises a 'three lines of defence’ approach to ensure that appropriate responsibility is allocated
for the management, reporting and escalation of risks.

A key aspect of implementing a strong Internal Control framework is the first line of defence i.e. the
functional business areas and management who are responsible for establishing and maintaining
adequate internal control policies and procedures. The Board and Senior Management of the Bank
recognise the responsibility of the first line of defence in identifying and managing the risks inherent in
the Bank’'s products, services, activities, processes and systems for which it is accountable. In
accordance with the Bank’s Risk and Control Self-Assessment framework, functional business areas have
primary responsibility for assessing and testing the operational effectiveness of the Bank's controls.

The second line of defence comprises the Risk Management Function, the Compliance Function and
the Risk Committee. The second line of defence ensures the appropriate development and maintenance
of systems by the first line of defence for effective and efficient operations; adequate control of risks;
prudent conduct of business; reliability of financial and non-financial information reported or disclosed
(both internally and externally); and compliance with laws, regulations, supervisory requirements and
the Bank’s internal policies and procedures. The Bank's second line of defence covers the whole
organisation and the activities of all business, support and control units, including any outsourced
activities.

The third line of defence, provided by Internal Audit, provides independent assurance to management
and to the Audit Committee and the Board. It ensures that controls are in place for identified risks, that
the controls are appropriately designed and operating effectively, and that the risks are being managed
within the Bank's Risk Appetite. The third line of defence reviews the effectiveness of the first and second
lines of defence and makes recommendations for improvement as required.

10
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RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT - continued

Risk Governance

The Bank’s organisational structure is designed to promote effective and prudent risk management of
the Bank’s activities. The mechanisms through which this is achieved include:

e Adocumented Board Charter which sets out the matters reserved for the Board and a Delegated
Authority Matrix;

* Terms of References for all Board Committees* which set out the decision making authorities
and responsibilities of each Committee; Management Committee Terms of References which
set out the responsibilities and reporting lines of each Committee;

Board Commutteas

- Management Committess

Board of Directors

Audit Committee Remuneration & Nominations Committee
sired by | utive Director ~haired by Non-E ve Director
(Indepe

Risk Committee
Chaired by Non-Executive Directo

Management Asset & Liability Residual Asset Risk
Committee Committee Committee Creg;ggg?&‘“
Chaired by Chaired by Chaired by Chief Credit Officer
Managing Director Chief Financial Officer Chief Financial Officer B

The chart below displays the Bank's three lines of defence model.

Board of Directors
I |
1 |
Management Committees (inc Credit, 1 Risk Compliance 1 Internal
Alco & RV) : Function Function : Audit
| 1
| ]
1 ]
| i
] [ ]
: 1 i [l 3 Line of
1=t Line of Defence I 2= Line of Defence 1 Necara
] [ ]
! i
* The Board Committees are: Risk Committee Rernuneration and Nominations Committee and Audit Committee as shown

in the graph above

11



Dell Bank International d.a.c.

RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT - continued
Board Committees

The Risk Committee of the Bank is responsible for oversight and advice to the Board on the significant
risk exposures of the Bank and future risk strategy. The Risk Committee will advise the Board on risk
appetite and tolerance for future strategy, taking account of the Board's overall risk appetite and the
current financial position of the Bank. The Risk Committee will also oversee the Bank's Risk Management
function.

The Bank’s Risk Management Function supports the Risk Committee in its activities and responsibilities.
Responsibility for risk management policies and risk tolerances lies with the Board of Directors. The
Board of Directors has delegated authority to the Risk Committee to take all actions necessary to
perform its duties and responsibilities in overseeing risk.

The Audit Committee has been delegated responsibility by the Board to provide oversight in respect of
the financial reporting process, the quality and integrity of the Bank’s financial statements, and internal
control framework of the Bank. The Internal Audit function reports to the Audit Committee.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee is responsible for determining the remuneration policy
and framework in compliance with Central Bank of Ireland and European Banking Authority
requirements. The Committee has oversight of the Remuneration policy to ensure effective risk
management and recruitment of suitable candidates to fill the board and senior management vacancies.
The Committee is also responsible for reviewing and approving performance based remunerations and
proposed employee share plans.

Management Committees

The Management Committee is responsible for the overall management of the Bank in accordance with
the Board Charter and its Terms of Reference. The Management Committee is charged with identifying
and managing the core operating needs of the Bank.

The ALCO is responsible for the management of the balance sheet of the Bank, including capital
adequacy in accordance with the risk appetite approved by the Board and the Bank's Internal Capital
Adequacy Assessment Process (“ICAAP") framework. The ALCO responsibilities also include establishing
and maintaining appropriate procedures for the management of liquidity risk, market risk and
contingency funding that are consistent with the strategy and policy approved by the Board.

The Residual Asset Risk Committee of the Bank is responsible for the setting, validation and monitoring
of residual asset risk for the Bank. The responsibilities include monitoring adherence to residual asset
risk and reviewing strategies and policies regarding setting of Residual Values.

The Credit Committee has been delegated responsibility by the Board to formulate the credit policies
and procedures, to oversee the credit administration function and associated credit risk management.
The responsibility of the Credit Committee includes monitoring of the quality of credits granted, and
considering reviews of the internal credit controls, including the effectiveness of the internal credit
function. The Credit Committee is responsible for the overall management of credit exposures of the
Bank. Credit exposures include both transactional and commercial credit. The responsibilities of the
Credit Committee include establishing and developing the Credit Policy and recommending it to the
Risk Committee for approval; implementing the credit authorities’ matrix, manual grading/rating
methodologies and automated scoring thresholds approved by the Risk Committee.

12
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Dell Bank International d.a.c.

RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT — continued
Credit Risk (audited)

Credit risk represents a significant risk at the Bank. Credit risk refers to the risk that the Bank’s customers
fail to meet their scheduled payments for operating leases, finance leases and loans approved by the
Bank’s credit function in addition to credit risk arising from Treasury activities with other credit
institutions such as placing of deposits with counterparties and from the purchase of interest rate and
foreign exchange derivatives for economic hedging purposes.

The core values and main procedures governing the provision of credit are laid down in credit policy
documents; these have been approved by the Board of Directors and are reviewed regularly.

Credit Risk — Measurement

The Bank measures credit risk on an individual counterparty basis, utilising either an automated or
manual credit underwriting process.

Automated credit decisions are based primarily on customer information obtained from 3rd party credit
reporting agencies (Credit Bureau and Fraud databases) and are subject to automated credit-granting
rules that utilise mathematically derived and statistically based credit scorecards. An integral part of the
credit-granting process is a comprehensive set of management tools and controls that dictate
acceptable credit score cut-offs and risk grades.

Management recognise that system generated scores cannot take into consideration all circumstances
and information available to make automated credit decisions. The purpose of the manual adjudication
is to reasonably estimate the likelihood associated with a customer’s probability of default ("PD") and the
expected loss given a default event ("LGD"). All manual credit decisions are on a case by case basis using
a range of quantitative and qualitative factors that are suitable and applicable to the assessment. This
methodology is used in both the original underwriting decisions and as part of the on-going risk
management of the portfolio.

The Bank requires all customers be graded under the internal grading system, including all new
business, renewals of existing credit facilities and periodic reviews of liquidating exposures. Any change
in a condition of a customer or a credit facility may have its risk grades reviewed and adjusted
accordingly.

The Bank uses a 16 point scale in assigning PD grades of customers. The grades provide an estimate of
a customer’s Probability of Default within a 12 month horizon. Quantitative and qualitative measures are
used to develop a PD grade. The probability of default will increase proportionally as the grade increases.
The Bank uses a Loss Given Default ("LGD") scale which expresses the loss on a facility as a proportion
of exposure. Quantitative and qualitative measures are used to inform the LGD grade. The percentage
of exposure lost given a default scenario increases as the LGD grade increases. An analysis of the Bank's
Leased Assets by PD grade as at 31 December 2015 is set out in Note 4 of the financial statements.

Management of credit risk reflects the requirements of the Capital Requirements Regulation & Capital
Requirements Directive collectively known as CRD IV. The Bank applies the standardized approach for
calculating credit risk weighted assets and this is embedded in the Bank’s daily operational
management.

13
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RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT - continued
Credit Risk Mitigation

The Bank structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted
in relation to one borrower, or groups of borrowers, and to geographical and industry segments. Such
risks are monitored on a revolving basis and subject to an annual or more frequent review, when
considered necessary. An analysis of the Bank's Leased Assets by geographic segment is set out in Note
4 of the financial statements.

Some other specific control and mitigation measures undertaken by the Bank to mitigate credit risk
include the taking of corporate guarantees, personal guarantees, Letters of Credit, Insurance & Self-
insurance. In respect of all lease contracts, the Bank retains the title of underlying assets as collateral.
In the event of a default the Bank reserves the right to recover the leased assets. From time to time, the
Bank may accept other forms of credit risk mitigants.

Credit Risk Impairment and Provisioning Policies

The Bank first determines whether evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets. If the
Bank determines that there is impairment of a particular financial asset then a specific provision is
booked against the asset.

If the Bank concludes that no specific indication of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with related credit risk characteristics
and includes these assets under the collective incurred but not reported ("IBNR") assessment.

Market Risk (audited)

Market risk is the risk relating to the uncertainty of returns attributable to fluctuations in market factors.
The risk factors include interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and their associated market volatilities.
The principal market risks facing the Bank are interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk.

The Bank has a robust and comprehensive policy for assessing, measuring and managing interest rate
risk and foreign currency risk (FX). The ALCO is responsible for defining and recommending the Bank's
Market Risk Policy for Board Risk Committee approval. The policy, together with the Bank’s Risk Appetite
Framework, establishes the risk appetite and limits based on a Target / Trigger / Limit framework. Limits
are set as a percentage of the available Regulatory Capital. Both the Interest Rate Risk in the Banking
Book (IRRBB") and FX hedging programs are in place in order to minimise the Bank's P&L volatility
exposure to potentially unpredictable market movements.

14
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RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT - continued
Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is a financial risk caused by an exposure to unanticipated changes in the exchange
rates between two currencies. The Bank is a Euro denominated entity but serves the funding
requirements of the leasing business throughout the European Economic Area (“‘EEA") region and is
exposed to currency risk across the following currencies: GBP, CHF, USD, DKK, SEK, NOK and PLN. The
Bank has transaction exposure across the non-Euro countries as it has contractual cash flows
(receivables and payables) whose values are subject to unanticipated market changes in exchange rates.
To realize the euro value of the Bank's foreign denominated cash flows, the Bank runs an EX hedging
program.

Resulting from the use of derivative instruments, the Bank is exposed to the risk that counterparties will
fail to meet their contractual obligations. To mitigate against this risk the Bank maintains risk limits that
correspond to each institution’s credit ratings.

FX forwards converting non-Euro cash-flows back to a Euro basis are utilised in order to minimise the
Bank’s FX risk exposure. The risk framework in place is the same as that for IRRBB where the residual un-
hedged P&L exposure is measured against the prescribed limits which are based on a percentage of the
Bank’s own funds. Periodically, the Bank may choose to obtain funding in Non-Euro currencies and will
hedge these drawings accordingly with Foreign Exchange derivatives.

The FX risk management model transforms the net un-hedged position by currency into an implied
maximum loss amount. Credit Conversion Factors ("CCF’) are utilized to calculate the exposure by
currency and maturity profile. The total implied FX loss by currency is then converted to a Euro
equivalent base and aggregated. The resulting Euro implied FX loss aggregation is monitored against the
Bank’s FX loss Target, Trigger and Limit on a daily basis and reported to ALCO monthly.

Further analysis of the Bank’s FX Risk position is detailed in Note 4 of the financial statements.
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the Bank will experience deterioration in its financial position as interest
rates move over time. The Bank does not take any proprietary positions on the interest rate markets for
P&L purposes and therefore only runs non-traded interest rate risk. The Bank's portfolio of non-traded
financial instruments principally comprises of commercial finance and operating leases, external loan
facilities, capital and hedging instruments.

The main source of this interest rate risk is re-pricing risk, which reflects the fact that the Bank’s assets
and liabilities are comprised of different maturities and are priced off different interest rate bases. This
is the risk that the interest earned on assets and paid on liabilities will change by different amounts if
interest rates change owing to differences in the re-pricing characteristics of those assets and liabilities.
The extent of the risk depends on the scale of the re-pricing maturity mismatches on the Bank's balance
sheet. Further analysis of the bank’s Interest rate Risk mismatch is detailed in Note 4 of the financial
statements.

Non-traded interest rate risk is calculated on the basis of establishing the re-pricing risk ladder. The
majority of asset and liability balances are profiled out by contractual maturity or re-pricing date. Non-
financial asset and liabilities (mainly comprised of operating leases, the Bank's capital and reserves) are
spread evenly across the risk ladder over medium and longer term maturities.

IRRBB exposures are primarily identified through the use of the Committee of European Banking
Authority ("EBA") Interest Rate Risk stress scenario based on a 200bps upward yield curve shock. The
EBA guidelines provide the maturity bucket percentage weightings and the residual un-hedged risk
position is then measured against prescribed risk limits.

15
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RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT - continued

IRRBB is monitored on a daily basis and the positions are reported at the monthly ALCO meeting. As the
Bank is a Euro denominated entity providing funding for its non-Euro denominated business primarily in
Euro and with the FX hedging program ensuring cash-flows convert to Euro base currency, risk positions
are managed and monitored on a Euro basis.

The Bank also uses an undiscounted PV01 metric as a means of interest rate risk management. The PV01
measures the P&L impact of a one basis point shift in the yield curve on the Bank's risk exposure.

Both EBA and PV01 metrics are used to determine the level of hedging required. The Bank maintains a
Euro based interest rate swap portfolio to mitigate its interest rate risk exposure.

Further analysis of the Bank's Interest rate Risk positions are detailed in Note 4 of the financial
statements.

Funding & Liquidity Risk (audited)

Effective liquidity risk management is central to the building of a strong and solid balance sheet and is a
key pillar in the Bank's core strategy.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank is unable to meet its on and off balance sheet obligations when
they fall due without incurring significant costs. Liquidity risk is highly dependent on the Bank’s balance
sheet characteristics such as the maturity profile of the assets and liabilities, the quality of its liquidity
buffer, broader market conditions and access to sufficient market funding.

Outflows include payments made to affiliates and Value Added Resellers, on the origination of lease
contracts, cash requirements from contractual commitments, inter-bank deposits being withdrawn or
other cash outflows, such as significant operating expenditure or debt maturities. Such outflows would
deplete available cash resource.

The Bank’s assets are comprised primarily of lease and loan obligations. These loans have short to
medium term contractual repayment profiles (typically 3 year amortisation schedules) although the
credit agreements allow the lessor in general to repay at will. In aggregate, such a pool of assets will
have a reasonably predictable repayment profile, though one that is still variable and that may vary
systematically based on a variety of market and macroeconomic factors.

The Bank has a robust and comprehensive policy for assessing, measuring and managing liquidity risk.
The ALCO is responsible for defining and approving the Bank’s liquidity policy in accordance with the
broader Risk Policies established by the Risk Committee.

The Bank's Liquidity Policy will reflect CRD IV requirements and the Central Bank of Ireland’s
requirements for the Management of Liquidity Risk. The liquidity risk framework is subject to internal
oversight, challenge and governance. The ALCO has primary responsibility and reports to the Board Risk
Committee. Liquidity risk is also monitored by the control functions as appropriate.

16
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RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT - continued
Stress Testing

The strength of the Bank’s liquidity risk management is evaluated based on its ability to survive under
stress. Effective management of liquidity involves assessing this potential mismatch under a variety of
stress scenarios. Stress testing is used to help inform a broader understanding of liquidity risk as well as
to model specific liquidity risk events.

The Bank actively monitors a range of market and firm specific indicators on an on-going basis which
are designed to act as early warning indicators that liquidity stresses are emerging. The stresses will apply
a range of behavioural assumptions to the performance of the asset and liability products. Scenarios
include assumptions about significant changes in key funding sources, credit ratings, contingent sources
of funds and political and economic conditions. The Bank is expected to be able to withstand these
stressed conditions through its own resources. Simulated liquidity stress testing is carried out regularly
and reflects the impact of firm specific and market related scenarios on the adequacy of the Bank’s liquid
resources.

Liquidity Monitoring

The Treasury function is responsible for the daily management of the liquidity buffer, monitoring and
reporting of the Bank’s liquidity position in accordance with the Liquidity Policy. The Liquidity Coverage
Ratio ("LCR”) as prescribed in the Basel Ill accord is internally modelled and monitored by the Bank and
includes Target, Trigger and Limit parameters. In addition the Net Stable Funding Ratio is also monitored
and modelled by the Treasury function.

The Treasury function reports the results of the Idiosyncratic Scenario to the ALCO members on a daily
basis. The liquidity position, compliance and policy are further monitored by the Risk Management
function.

Any breach or material deterioration of these metrics would set in motion a series of actions and
escalations.

The Bank sources funds from five principal sources:

Initial contributed equity and retained earnings
Affiliate borrowings

External Loan facilities

e Interbank/Corporate Deposits

e Unsecured funding

The mix of the above sources is intended to provide the Bank with a diversified and stable funding base.
Further analysis of the Banks's projected outflows are detailed in Note 4 of the financial statements

Assets held for Managing Liquidity Risk
The Bank holds a portfolio of cash and money market placements to manage its liquidity profile. Liquid
assets are assets which can be quickly and easily converted into cash without incurring significant loss.

The Bank's assets held for managing liquidity risk comprise of:

e Cash
e Short term bank placements and money market deposits

These assets in aggregate are permitted to comprise up to 100% of the Bank's liquid asset holdings.
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d)

Dell Bank International d.a.c.

RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT - continued
Derivatives

The Bank does not have any Credit Support Annexes (“CSAs”) in place on its derivative portfolio and is
therefore not subject to collateral calls.

Liquidity Risk — Off Balance sheet iterms
The following items are listed as off balance sheet items at the financial year end:

e Residual value guarantees
e Lease and loan commitments to extend credit

Residual Asset Value Risk

Residual value risk is the risk that the realisation based residual value set at the start of a lease is not
achieved at the end of the lease. This may be due to a number of factors, including lower than expected
equipment resale value, changes in customer behaviour or higher fulfilment costs and/ or end of lease
operating expenses. The Bank seeks to minimise losses arising from residual value risk by understanding
the equipment leased, identifying long-term customer behaviour and applying expert judgement when
applying residual values in order to provide a balanced view of expected realisation.

The Bank's Asset Management End of Lease ("EOL") function utilises analysis on historic remarketing,
renewal and extension data to determine the average end of lease recovery. The function utilises
knowledge and the global experience of Management to apply expert judgement to the historically
achieved remarketing values to derive Recovery Based Residuals (‘RBR").

The Residual Asset Risk Committee is responsible for the setting, validation and monitoring of the
residual risk for the Bank. The Bank has established internal controls, with defined limits and regular
reporting for residual value risk exposures within and across its portfolios.

Operational Risk

The Bank faces operational risks in the regular conduct of its day to day business objectives. Operational
risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from
external events. Sources of operational risk include internal fraud; external fraud; employment practices
and workplace safety; clients, products, and business practices; damage to physical assets; business
disruption and system failures; and execution, delivery and system failures.

The Bank’s Operational Risk management framework exists to mitigate against such risks. The
Operational Risk management framework is structured in a three tier environment comprising;
identification and assessment, monitoring and reporting; and control and mitigation.

Operational risk specifically arises in the areas of:

Business continuity
Change management
People

Internal controls
Information technology
New product development
Outsourcing
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RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT - continued

The Bank uses a range of tools to identify, assess and manage operational risk such as: business process
mapping, risk and control assessments and testing, key risk indicator and key performance indicator
reporting and assessments, and internal loss data, errors and control failure reporting.

Allocation of clear responsibilities for operational risk management ensures that risks are identified,
monitored, managed and mitigated, in line with the Bank's risk appetite.

8. Balance Sheet Measurement (audited)

Capital adequacy is assessed under the Banks ICAAP framework. The treasury function manages the
Bank’s capital strategy under the guidance of the Board. The Bank is committed to maintaining its sound
capitalisation. The Bank has equity share capital of €50m and capital contributions received of €217.5m
at 31 December 2015.

The Bank's objectives when managing capital are:

e To comply with the Pillar | and Pillar Il capital requirements set by the Regulator

e To safeguard the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business

e To meet the financial covenant on our revolving credit facility

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored daily by the Bank’'s Regulatory function.
The Bank has considered the capital and other related requirements which will apply to it through the
following key legislation and requirements:

CRD IV

Relevant EBA technical standards

The CBI Pillar Il capital assessment

Central Bank's Licensing and Supervision Standards and Requirements

The Bank holds own funds in the form of capital which will always be more than or equal to the higher
of capital charges calculated under Pillar | or Pillar II.

The Bank monitors a range of ratios which have been set at, or in excess of its minimum regulatory
requirements and are designed to reflect the Bank's risk appetite. This takes into consideration the
impact of CRD IV phasing arrangements. The ratios provide a mechanism to monitor compliance and
include early warning triggers to allow management to take appropriate timely action should the Bank
approach a limit. Per the terms of the license with the Central Bank of Ireland, the Bank has committed
to maintain a solvency ratio that is in excess of the minimum required under CRD IV.

The Bank did not breach any external capital ratios during the current or prior year.

9. Reputational Risk

Reputational Risk is the risk to the Dell brand, or goodwill exhibited towards that brand, by the Bank's
customers and wider market. Reputational risk includes social, ethical and environmental risks for the
purpose of this Framework.

The Bank will not enter into activities that will knowingly give rise to reputational risk issues that will

materially damage the Dell brand. The Bank seeks to ensure that outsourced activities meet the Bank's
reputational risk standards, including the treatment and disposal of hardware.
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RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT - continued

10. Regulatory Compliance Risk

Regulatory risk is the risk to earnings, capital and reputation arising from non-compliance with banking
regulations, anti-money laundering, data protection, and other associated requirements. Upstream risk
is the risk arising from a new regulatory measure that the Bank is currently unaware of or from
regulations becoming applicable due to a change in the nature or scope of the Bank's activities. The
Bank has zero appetite for censure from regulatory, political or legislative bodies.

11. Business & Strategy Risk

Business & Strategic Risk arises from adverse and unexpected changes in income, costs or profitability
that are due to the Bank’s business model, its strategy, and decisions made by Board and senior
management. The Bank considers effective governance to be the most appropriate mitigant against this
risk category. Business & Strategic Risk is included in the ICAAP assessment.

12. Group Risk

Group Risk arises from reliance on Dell Inc. for financial and operational support, including funding and
outsourced activities. Group risk includes the risk of negative impact on the Bank from other Group
entities which may disrupt outsourced activities of the Bank, or may impact the Bank's ability to operate
effectively. The Bank considers effective governance to be the most appropriate mitigant against this
risk category. Group Risk is included in the ICAAP assessment.
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Dell Bank International Designated Activity
Company

Report on the financial statements

In our opinion, Dell Bank International Designated Activity Company’s financial statements (the “financial
statements”):

e give a true and fair view of the company’s assets, liabilities and financial position as at 31 December
2015 and of its loss and cash flows for the year then ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") as adopted by the European Union; and

 have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014.

The financial statements comprise:

¢ the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015;

e the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
e the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

s the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Certain required disclosures have been presented elsewhere in the Annual Report, rather than in the
notes to the financial statements. These are cross-referenced from the financial statements and are
identified as audited.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statements is
Irish law and IFRSs as adopted by the European Union.

In applying the financial reporting framework, the directors have made a number of subjective
judgements, for example in respect of significant accounting estimates. In making such estimates, they
have made assumptions and considered future events.

Matters on which we are required to report by the Companies Act 2014

« We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes
of our audit.

e In our opinion the accounting records of the company were sufficient to permit the financial
statements to be readily and properly audited.

e The financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records.

e In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the financial statements.
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2014 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, the disclosures of
directors’ remuneration and transactions specified by sections 305 to 312 of that Act have not been made.
We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 7, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view.

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with Irish
law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with
the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company's members as a body
in accordance with section 391 of the Companies Act 2014 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this
report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in
writing.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). An audit
involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused
by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of:

e whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed:;

e the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors; and
o the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the directors’ judgements against available
evidence, forming our own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the financial statements.

We test and examine information, using sampling and other auditing techniques, to the extent we consider
necessary to provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions. We obtain audit evidence through
testing the effectiveness of controls, substantive procedures or a combination of both.

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report and Financial
Statements to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any
information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge
acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

%
mma Scott
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audit Firm
Dublin

23 March 2016
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 Decernber 2015

Year ended Year ended
Note 31 December 31 December
/n thousands of Euro 2015 2014 * Restated
Interest receivable and similar income 5 32,843 24,468
Interest payable and similar expense 5 (12,727) (10,050)
Net interest income 20,116 14,418
Operating lease income 6 47,674 58,120
Fee and commission income 7 487 584
Fee and commission expense 7 (152) (128)
Other Income from end of lease activities 8 8,501 6,250
Other operating income 56,510 64,826
Net trading expense 9 (16,009) (12,249)
Personnel expenses 10 (16,165) (15,867)
General and administrative expenses 12 (4,576) (3.508)
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 13 (51,321) (55,686)
Other operating expenses 14 6,309 3.603
Total operating expenses (65,753) (71,458)
Total operating loss before impairment charges (5,136) (4,463)
Impairment charges on loans and receivables 15 (5,478) (2.456)
Loss before taxation 16 (10,614) (6,919)
Income tax credit 17 1,266 403
Loss for the year (9.348) (6,516)
Total comprehensive expense, net of tax (9,348) (6,516)
Total comprehensive expense, attributable to:
- Equity holders of the entity (9,348) (6,516)

*The comparative period has been restated to separately disclose "Other Income from end of lease activities " in the Statement

of Comprehensive Income.

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board:

AUV | N —

Chairman
William Wavro
23 March 2016

e

E)iréctor
Thomas Luttrell
23 March 2016

e

Director
Cormac Costelloe
23 March 2016

Secretary
Kate Brennan
23 March 2016



Dell Bank International d.a.c.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

Note 31 December 31 December
/n thousands of Euro 2015 2014
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 18 40,355 270
Loans and advances to banks 19 55,492 59,297
Loans and advances to customers 20 682,218 462,666
Derivative financial instruments 21 2,021 794
Intangible assets and goodwill 22 32,642 36,963
Property, plant and equipment 23 28,005 78,087
Deferred income tax assets 25 9,453 7,389
Current tax assets 24 161 69
Other assets 26 50,219 43,614
Total assets 900,566 689,149
Liabilities
Deposits from banks 28 445,248 247,819
Other liabilities 29 38,343 16,716
Derivative financial instruments 21 17,746 12,262
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 35 133,881 177,566
Subordinated liabilities 30 65,072 65,153
Total liabilities 700,290 519,516
Equity
Share capital 31 50,000 50,000
Capital contribution 31 217,500 177,500
Share based payment reserve 31 = 9
Revenue reserves 31 (67,224) (57,876)
Total equity 200,276 169,633
Total liabilities and equity 900,566 689,149
Memorandum items
Guarantees 33 858 1,254
Commitments 33 40,791 33,319

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board: &\ EQ
oM W
Chairman Director

William Wavro
23 March 2016

Direétor o
Thomas Luttrell

23 March 2016
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Dell Bank International d.a.c.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2015

31 December

31 December

In thousands of Furo 2015 2014
Cash flows from operating activities

Loss before tax (10.614) (6,919)
Adjustments for:

Impairment charges on financial assets 5,478 2,765
Interest expense on subordinated liabilities and other capital

instruments 4,654 5,755
Depreciation, amortisation and write-offs 51,321 55,686
Tax write off = -
Other non—cash items (30) (36)
Foreign exchange (gains) /losses - 71
Proceeds from disposal of operating lease 5,352 6.261
Cash generating from operating activities 56,161 63.583
Taxation refunded/(paid) (889) (595)
Cash flows from operating activities before changes in

operating assets and liabilities 55,272 62,988
Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Net increase in derivative financial instruments 4,257 9.322
Net decrease/(increase) in loans and advances to banks (lease) 945 (1.280)
Net decrease/(increase) in loans and advances to customers (225,029) (212,269)
Net (increase)/decrease in other assets (6.512) (22,142)
Net increase/(decrease) in other liabilities 21,535 3,780
Net increase/(decrease) in deposits from banks 194,902 247,273
Net increase/(decrease) in Intercompany balance (18,678) (2,409)
Net cash provided by operating activities 26.692 85.263
Cash flows from investing activities

Additions to property, plant and equipment (444) (28.698)
Additions to intangible assets (1.826) (4.626)
Net cash used in investing activities (2,270) (33,324)
Cash flows from financing activities

Issue of shares g =
Capital contribution 40,000 -
Proceeds from borrowed funds 60,000 -
Repayments of borrowed funds (85.000) (47,517)
Issue of subordinated debt 5 =
Interest on intercompany loan and subordinated debt (2.197) (5.713)
Net cash provided in financing activities 12,803 (53,320)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 49,556 50,847
Net cash provided by operating activities 26,692 85,263
Net cash used in investing activities (2,270) (33,324)
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities 12,803 (53.230)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 86,781 49,556
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a)

b)

c)

d)

Dell Bank International d.a.c.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated:

Basis of preparation

The Directors make an unreserved statement that the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRS") as adopted by the European Union (‘EU"). The financial statements also comply with the
requirements of Irish Statute comprising those parts of the Companies Act, 2014, applicable to companies
reporting under IFRS.

The financial statements comprise the income statement and statement of other comprehensive income
shown as one statement (the statement of comprehensive income), the statement of financial position,
the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows, the notes to the financial statements and
sections 3, 4, 5 and 8 of the risk management report.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for, financial
assets and financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss, which have been measured at fair
value. The Bank classifies its expenses by the nature of expense method.

Adoption of new accounting standards

The following standards, amendments and interpretations became effective in 2015 and are relevant to
the Bank. These standards have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015.

Standard Content Applicable for financial
/interpretation years beginning on/after
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 1 January 2015

Amendment to IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements provides an exception from the requirements
of consolidation and instead requires investment entities to present their investments in subsidiaries as
net investments. The amendment has had no impact on the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Comparatives

Comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation or where additional
analysis has been provided in the current year. The comparative period has been restated to separately
disclose Other Income from End of Lease activities in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. In
addition the current tax asset has been shown separately on the face of the Statement of Financial
Position.
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e)

f)

g)

h)

Dell Bank International d.a.c.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

Accounting Policies — continued

Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented using the functional currency of Euro (also referred to as "EUR”
and "€7), being the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Bank operates. The figures
shown in the financial statements are rounded to thousands ('000), unless otherwise stated.

Foreign currency transactions are translated to Euro using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rate prevailing at the year end. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transaction.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the income statement as “other operating expenses”.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of certain assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities.

The estimates and assumptions are based on management's experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Since management's judgement involves making
estimates concerning the likelihood of future events, the actual results could differ from those estimates.
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future period affected.

Management also makes certain judgements, apart from those involving estimations, in the process of
applying the accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 3
to the financial statements.

Interest income and expense
Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing financial instruments are recognised within ‘interest
income’ and ‘interest expense’ in the income statement using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank
estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment) but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees, transaction costs
and all other premiums or discounts.

Fee and cormmission income and expense

Fees such as agency fees and late fees are included in this category.

Commitment fees for leases and loans that are originated are deferred (together with related initial direct
costs) and recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate on the lease or loan. Similarly where
the Bank has arranged loan facilities for funding purposes any commitment or arrangement fees are
deferred and recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate of the debt facility.
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Dell Bank International d.a.c.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
Accounting Policies — continued

Financial assets

(1) Classification, Recognition and Measurement

The Bank holds two categories of financial assets:

(il Loans and receivables, and
(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Management determines the classification of financial assets at initial recognition.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are initially recognised at fair value — which is the cash consideration to originate
or purchase the loan including any transaction costs — and measured subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method. Loans and receivables are reported in the statement of financial
position as loans and advances to customers or loans and advances to banks.

Interest on loans is included in the income statement and is reported as ‘Interest Receivable and similar
income’. In the case of impairment, the impairment loss is reported as a deduction from the carrying value
of the loan and recognised in the income statement as ‘Impairment charges on Loans and Receivables'.
(ii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank enters into foreign exchange forwards and interest rate swaps
for economic hedging purposes to manage foreign currency and interest rate risks. The Bank does not
enter into derivative transactions for speculative purposes.

Derivative financial instruments are held at fair value and changes in the instrument’s fair value are
recognized in the income statement as ‘Net trading income’. Derivatives are included as derivative
financial instrument assets when the fair value is positive.

The Bank does not apply hedge accounting to any of its derivative assets.

The Bank uses the trade date for accounting purposes when recording financial asset transactions.

(2) De-recognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from these assets

have ceased to exist or the assets have been transferred and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets are also transferred.
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Dell Bank International d.a.c.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
Accounting Policies — continued

Financial liabilities

(1) Classification, Recognition and Measurement

The Bank holds two categories of financial liabilities:

(i) Financial liabilities at amortised cost, and
(i) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

Management determines the classification of financial liabilities at initial recognition.

(i) Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not classified as at fair value through profit or loss fall into this category and
are measured at amortised cost. Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are intercompany loans,
subordinated debt and deposits from banks.

(i) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank enters into foreign exchange forwards and interest rate swaps
for economic hedging purposes to manage foreign currency and interest rate risks. The Bank does not
enter into derivative transactions for speculative purposes.

Derivative financial instruments are held at fair value and changes in the instruments' fair value are
recognised in the income statement as ‘Net trading expense’. Derivatives are included as derivative
financial instrument liabilities when the fair value is negative.

The Bank does not apply hedge accounting to any of its derivative financial liabilities.

(2) De-recognition

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they have been redeemed or otherwise extinguished.
Determination of fair value

For all financial instruments, fair value is determined using valuation techniques. In these techniques, fair
values are estimated from observable data in respect of similar financial instruments, using models to
estimate the present value of expected future cash flows or other valuation techniques, using inputs (for

example, LIBOR yield curve, FX rates and counterparty spreads) existing at the dates of the statement of
financial position.

The Bank uses widely recognised valuation models for determining fair values of non-standardised
financial instruments such as interest rate and currency swaps. For these financial instruments, inputs into
models are market-observable.
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Dell Bank International d.a.c.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
Accounting Policies — continued

Loans and advances to customers

(1) Finance lease

The Bank enters into finance lease arrangements as a lessor and assets held under finance lease of the
Bank are presented as loans and advances to customers. As per |AS 17 Leases, under a finance lease,
substantially all the risks and rewards to legal ownership are transferred by the lessor and thus the lease
payment receivables are recorded as the Bank's net investment in the leases.

The net investment in the leases consists of the sum of minimum lease term payments plus the residual
value amount, reduced by any deferred income for interest not yet earned. The Bank will recognise
finance income based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment
outstanding in respect of the finance leases.

The Bank also enters into leasing arrangements with other requlated financial institutions which are
presented as loans and advances to banks in the statement of financial position.

(2) Fees paid and costs incurred in connection with arranging leases

Initial direct and incremental costs incurred by the Bank in negotiating leases are also capitalised, offset
against the lease receivable balance in the statement of financial position and recognised over the lease
term as part of the effective interest rate.

Impairment of financial assets

The Bank assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after an initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’).That loss event should have an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the Bank's financial asset that can be reliably estimated.

Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Bank about the following loss events:

()  Delinquency in contractual payments of the leases;

(i)  Cash flow difficulties;

(i)  Uneven payment streams;

(iv) Breach of lease or loan conditions;

(v) Initiation of bankruptcy proceedings;

(vi) External and internal rating downgrade below an acceptable level, and

(vi) National and local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the portfolio.

The Bank performs an impairment assessment as follows:

(1) Individual evaluation of impairment

The Bank first determines whether evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant. If the Bank determines that there is impairment of a particular financial asset then
a specific provision is booked against the asset.

(2) Incurred but not reported (“IBNR")

If the Bank concludes that no specific indication of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with related credit risk characteristics and includes
these assets under the collective IBNR assessment.
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Dell Bank International d.a.c.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
Accounting Policies — continued
Operating lease

Leases of which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor, are
Classified as operating leases. The leased assets are included within property, plant and equipment on the
statement of financial position and depreciation is provided on the depreciable amount of these assets
on a systematic basis over their estimated useful lives. Lease income is recognised on a straight line basis
over the period of the lease. Payments and future contractual payments from the lessee are recognised
as receivable over the lease term only as the payments become due. Prepayments made under operating
leases (net of any incentives received from the Bank) are charged to the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.

Property, plant and equipment

Own use:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, or deemed cost; less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment, if any. Additions and subsequent expenditure are capitalised only to the extent
that they enhance the future economic benefits expected to be derived from the asset. Property, plant
and equipment are depreciated on a straight line basis over their estimated useful economic lives.
Depreciation is calculated based on the gross carrying amount, less the estimated residual value (in the
majority of cases deemed to be nil) at the end of the assets’ economic lives.

The Bank uses the following useful lives when calculating depreciation:

Class Useful Life
Computer equipment — Own use 30 months

Operating lease equipment:
Equipment on operating leases is depreciated over the term of the lease, typically 36 months. Lease term
ranges from 12 — 60 months.

The Bank reviews its depreciation rates regularly, at least annually, to take account of any change in
circumstances. When deciding on useful lives and methods, the principal factors that the Bank takes into
account are the expected rate of technological developments, expected market requirements for and the
expected pattern of usage of the assets. Gains and losses on operating leases equipment is included as
part of "other operating income” in the income statement.

Business combinations

The Bank applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred (excluding amounts relating to
the settlement of pre-existing relationships), the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and, in a business combination achieved in stages, the acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer's
previously-held equity interest in the acquiree. Transaction costs that the Bank incurs in connection with
a business combination are expensed as incurred.

To the extent that settlement of all or any part of a business combination is deferred, the fair value of the
deferred component is determined through discounting the amounts payable to their present value at the
date of exchange. The discount component is unwound as an interest charge in the Income Statement
over the life of the obligation. Where a business combination agreement provides for an adjustment to
the cost of the combination contingent on future events, the amount of the adjustment is included in the
cost at the acquisition date at fair value. The fair value of contingent consideration at acquisition date is
arrived at through discounting the expected payment to present value. In general, in order for contingent
consideration to become payable, pre-defined profit and/or profit/net asset ratios must be exceeded.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration will be recognised in profit or loss
unless the contingent consideration is classified as equity, in which case it is not re-measured and
settlement is accounted for within equity.
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Intangible assets

Gooawill

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of the consideration paid in a business combination over
the acquired interests in the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities at the
date of acquisition.

For the purpose of calculating goodwill, fair values of acquired assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
are determined by reference to market values or by discounting expected future cash flows to present
value. This discounting is performed either using market rates or by using risk-free rates and risk adjusted
expected future cash flows.

Goodwill is capitalised and reviewed annually for impairment, or more frequently when there are
indications that impairment may have occurred. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The Bank is considered to be one cash- generating unit.

Computer software

Computer software arising on a business acquisition is capitalised on the basis of costs incurred to acquire
and bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortised on the basis of the expected useful lives,
which is normally five years.

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an
expense as incurred. Costs that are directly associated with the production of identifiable and unigue
software products controlled by the Bank and which will probably generate economic benefits exceeding
costs beyond one year, are recognised as intangible assets. Direct costs include software development,
employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. These costs are reflected in “Assets
under Construction” and not amortised until they are brought into use in the business, at which point they
are transferred to software.

Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised using the straight line
method over their useful lives.

Computer software is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if its carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. The
estimated recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets were externally purchased as part of the business acquisition and fair valued on
initial recognition. They are subsequently measured at cost less amortisation and impairment, if any and,
are amortised on a straight line basis over 10 years. Amortisation methods and periods relating to these
intangible assets are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the income
statement when the asset is derecognised.

Other intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when there is an indication that the asset may be
impaired. Intangible assets not yet available for use are reviewed for impairment on an annual basis.

33



r)

s)

Dell Bank International d.a.c.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
Accounting Policies — continued
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements at fair value on the date the
guarantee is given. The fair value of a financial guarantee at the time of signature is zero because all
quarantees are agreed on arm's length terms and the value of the premium agreed corresponds to the
value of the guarantee obligation. No receivable for the future premiums is recognised.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Bank's liabilities under such guarantees are measured at the higher
of the initial amount, less amortisation of fees recognised in accordance with |AS 18 and the best estimate
of the amount required to settle the guarantee. These estimates are determined based on experience of
similar transactions and history of past losses, supplemented by the judgement of management. The fee
income earned is recognised on a straight-line basis over the life of the guarantee.

Any increase in the liability relating to guarantees is reported in the statement of comprehensive income
within other operating expenses.

Inventory

Inventory includes assets held for sale in the ordinary course of business. Inventory relates to returned
equipment at the end of lease that has not yet been sold through the re-marketing process and is stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Provisions and other contingent liabilities

Provisions are made where the Bank has present legal or constructive obligations as a result of past events
and it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the
amount can be reasonably estimated. The Bank recognises no provisions for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised
as an interest expense.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future
events giving rise to present obligations where the transfer of economic benefit is uncertain or cannot be
reliably measured. They are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements
unless they are remote.
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Employee benefits

(1) Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits, such as wages and salaries, social security costs and other benefits are
accounted for on an accruals basis over the period during which employees have provided services.
Bonuses are recognised to the extent that the Bank has a legal or constructive obligation to its
employees that can be measured reliably.

(2) Long Term Incentive Program (“LTI")

The LTl is a retention tool used by Dell to retain key staff. The employees’ awards will vest in the same
way as Restricted Stock Units ("RSUs") or Performance-Based Restricted Stock Units (“PBUs"), but at the
time of vesting, the employees will receive a cash payment, rather than receive shares of stock. The LTI
is based on combination of employees’ eligibility, award target and individual performance.

(3) Pension obligations

The Bank operates a defined contribution plan. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Bank pays fixed contributions into a separately administered fund. The Bank has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

For the defined contribution plans, the Bank pays contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Bank has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Income tax, including deferred tax
(1) Current income tax

Income tax payable on profits is calculated on the basis of the applicable tax law in each relevant
jurisdiction and is recognised as an expense in the period in which the profits arise.

The Bank does not offset income tax liabilities and current income tax assets, unless they are in the same
jurisdiction

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the country where
the Bank operates and generates taxable income.

35



w)

x)

Dell Bank International d.a.c.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
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(2) Deferred income tax

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences at the reporting date
between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets and current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise amounts due from
banks, and overdrafts. They are convertible into cash with an insignificant risk of changes in value and
with original maturities of less than three months.

Shareholders’ equity

(1) Share capital

Share capital represents funds raised by issuing shares in return for cash or other consideration. Share
capital comprises ordinary shares of the Bank.

(2) Capital contribution

Capital contributions represent the receipt of non-demandable considerations arising from transactions
with the parent company, DFS BV (Note 31). The contributions are classified as equity and may be either
distributable or non-distributable. Capital contributions are distributable if the assets received are in the

form of cash or another asset that is readily convertible to cash. Otherwise, they are treated as non-
distributable.

(3) Revenue reserves
Revenue reserves represent retained earnings or loss of the parent company and subsidiaries.
(4) Share based payment reserves

The share based payment expense charged to the income statement is credited to the share based
payment reserve over the vesting period of the shares and options.
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Accounting Policies — continued

Impact of new accounting standards

The following standards, amendments and interpretations become effective in 2016 or later years and will
be relevant to the Bank. These standards have not been applied in preparing the financial statements for

the year ended 31 December 2015. The Bank’s initial view of the impact of these accounting changes is
noted below.

Standard / Content Applicable for financial
interpretation years beginning on/after
IFRS 9 Financial instruments 1 January 2018

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018

IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019

IFRS 9, 'Financial instruments’, (effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018). This
standard is still subject to EU endorsement. IFRS 9 is the first step in the process to replace IAS 39,
financial instruments: recognition and measurement’. IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for classifying
and measuring financial assets and is likely to affect the Bank's accounting for its financial assets. IFRS 9
replaces the multiple classification models in IAS 39 with a single model that has only three classification
categories: amortised cost, fair value and fair value through OCI. Classification under IFRS 9 is driven by
the entity’s business model for managing financial assets and the contractual characteristics of the
financial assets. IFRS 9 requires entities to estimate and account for expected credit losses for all relevant
financial assets, starting from when they first acquire a financial instrument. When measuring expected
credit losses, entities will be required to use all relevant information that is available to them (without
undue cost or effort). IFRS 9 will introduce a substantially-reformed model for hedge accounting, with
improved disclosures about risk management activity. Consequently, the objective of the hedge
accounting requirements brought by IFRS 9 is to ‘represent, in the financial statements, the effect of an
entity’'s risk management activities. IFRS 9 removes the requirement to separate embedded derivatives
from financial asset hosts. IFRS 9 removes the cost exemption for unquoted equities. The Bank will apply
IFRS 9 once it is endorsed by the EU. Management are reviewing the potential impact of this standard.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers is effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018. This standard is still subject to EU endorsement. IFRS 15 will replace IAS 18 Revenue and
IAS 11 Construction Contracts. IFRS 15 replaces the current model under which revenue is recognised
based on whether the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the customer, with a five-
step model which specifies that revenue is recognised when control of goods and services has been
transferred. A modified retrospective approach for the adoption of IFRS 15 is permitted. Under this
transition method, entities need not restate the comparative period; transitional adjustments in retained
earnings will be recognised on the date of initial application. The new rules are only required to be applied
to contracts that are not completed contracts at the date of initial application. Management are reviewing
the potential impact of this standard on the Bank's financial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases is effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. This standard is still

subject to EU endorsement. IFRS 16 will replace IAS 17 Leases. Management are reviewing the potential
impact of this standard on the Bank’s financial statements.
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Going Concern

The time period that the Directors have considered in evaluating the appropriateness of the going concern
basis in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 is a period of twelve
months from the date of approval of these financial statements (the period of assessment’).

In making this assessment, the Directors considered the Bank's business, profitability projections, liquidity,
funding, solvency projections and capital plans as well as the continuing support of the ultimate parent.

As at 31 December 2015, the Bank had total assets of €900.6m (2014: €689.1m), having incurred a post-
tax loss of €9.4m (2014: loss of €6.5m).

The Bank is expected to continue to maintain a positive cash position on its own account for the
foreseeable future. The Bank signed an accordion to the collateralised loan facility for €260m on 30 July
2015. The Bank began taking corporate deposits in 2014 and 54% of the Bank’s funding now comes from
external sources in the form of:

Subordinated debt with Dell Global BV
Intercompany Loan with Dell Global BV
Collateralised Loan Facility

Corporate Deposits

Parent Guarantees

e  Multi-Currency Notional Pool

On the basis of the above, the Directors consider it appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a
going concern basis having concluded that there are no material uncertainties related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern over the
period of assessment.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The Bank's financial statements and its financial results are influenced by accounting policies,
assumptions, estimates and management judgement, which necessarily have to be made in the course of
preparation of the financial statements. As management judgement involves an estimate of the likelihood
of future events, actual results could differ from those estimates, which could affect the future reported
amounts of assets and liabilities. All estimates and assumptions required in conformity with IFRS are best
estimates undertaken in accordance with the applicable standard.

Accounting policies and management's judgements for certain items are especially critical for the Bank's
results and financial situation due to their materiality are set out below.

Deferred tax asset

The Bank has recognised a deferred tax asset of €9.5 million at 31 December 2015. The most significant
Judgement relates to the Bank's assessment of the recoverability of the portion of the deferred tax asset
relating to trading losses.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences and unutilised tax losses can be utilised. In order for the
Bank to recognise an asset for unutilised losses it must have convincing evidence of sufficient future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised. The recognition of a deferred tax asset relies on
management’s judgements surrounding the probability and sufficiency of future taxable profits, and the
future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences.

To the extent that the recognition of a deferred tax asset is dependent on sufficient future profitability, a
degree of estimation and the use of assumptions are required. Under current Irish legislation there is no
time limit on the utilisation of these losses.

The Board's judgement takes into consideration the impact of both positive and negative evidence
including historical financial performance, projections of future taxable income and future reversals of
existing taxable temporary differences.

The deferred tax asset has been recognised on the basis that it is probable the trading losses will be
recovered as Board is satisfied that it is probable that the Bank will have sufficient future taxable profits
against which the deferred tax assets can be utilised.

Impairment charges on loans and advances to customers
The Bank reviews its loan portfolio for impairment on an ongoing basis. The Bank first assesses whether
objective evidence of impairment exists.

All contracts in the portfolio are considered for specific provisioning. The amount of the impairment
provision is calculated by reducing the carrying amount of an exposure to the estimated recoverable
amount. All customers will be fully provided for when a loss is evident. Specific review is performed on
contracts that have aged to 150 days past due and where required, a reserve is recorded.

Impairment provisions are recognized for losses not specifically identified but which, experience and
observable data indicate, are present in the portfolio / group of exposures at the date of assessment.
These are described as incurred but not reported provisions ("IBNR").

Assessment for the impairment of Goodwill and Intangible Assets arising on acquisition

Goodwill of €13.2m was recognised in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 as
a result of the acquisition and the external fair valuation of the Dell related assets, sales, servicing functions
and platform from CIT Vendor Finance Europe.
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As per IFRS 3 Business Combinations, goodwill is capitalised and reviewed annually for impairment or
more frequently when there are indications that impairment may have occurred in accordance with 1AS
36 Impairment of Assets. The Bank tests whether goodwill has suffered any impairment on an annual
basis. The recoverable amount of a cash generating unit (CGU) is determined based on value-in-use
calculations which require the use of assumptions. The calculations use cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by the Board covering a three-year period. Cash flows beyond the three year
period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates. Based on the fact that the projected value in
use of the Bank’s business is significantly in excess of the carrying value of the business, no impairment is
required. In the event of changes to profitability assumptions underlying the value in use calculation in
the future, the goodwill recognised may be adjusted.

As a result of the acquisition and the external fair valuation of the Dell related assets, sales, servicing
functions and platform from CIT Vendor Finance Europe, intangible assets were identified and accounted
for in accordance with IAS 38 Intangible Assets.

The Bank is carrying acquired intangible assets in relation to brand name and customer relations. These

assets are being amortised over a finite life of 10 years. Management have concluded that the estimated
useful life over which the assets are being amortised is reasonable.
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4. Financial Risk Management
(1) Credit Risk

Credit risk represents a significant risk to the Bank. Credit risk refers to the risk that the Bank's customers
fail to meet their scheduled payments for operating leases, finance lease, hire purchase and loans
approved by the Bank’s credit function in addition to credit risk arising from Treasury activities with other
credit institutions such as placing of deposits with counterparties and from the purchase of interest rate
and foreign exchange derivatives for economic hedging purposes.

In respect of all finance and operating lease contracts, the Bank retains the title of underlying assets as
collateral. In the event of a default the Bank reserves the right to recover the leased assets.

Details of the Bank’s procedures and policies relating to credit risk are outlined in the Credit section of the
Risk management report. (Section 3)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements

The following table outlines the maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit
enhancements in respect of the Bank's financial assets as at the statement of financial position date:

31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14

€000 €000

Note
Cash and Balances with Central Banks 18 40,355 270
Loans and Advances to Banks 19 55,492 59,297
Loans and Advances to Customers 20 682,218 462,666
Derivative Financial Instruments 21 2,021 794

780,086 523,027
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The following table outlines the Bank’s exposure to bank credit risk by asset class:

31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
€'000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000

Loans and Loans and

S&P Grade Cash Advances Derivatives Cash Advances Derivatives
to Banks to Banks

AA - 64 - - - =
A+ - 20,975 - - - 101
A 40,355 24,568 619 270 48,269 429
A- - 850 1,150 - - 264
BBB+ - 642 - z - =
BBB - (222) 252 - = =
BBB- - 85 = - - -
BB+ - 7,022 - - 10,011 =
BB - 102 - - 1,017 =
BB- = 1,289 - = - 2
B+ - 89 - - - -
B - 27 8 = . -
B- - 1 ) = = =
40,355 55,492 2,021 270 59,297 794

The table below outlines the Bank's exposure to credit risk in respect of its loans and advances to
customers (hire purchases, loans and finance leases assets) and operating lease contracts with customers.
Operating lease assets are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment for accounting purposes. The credit
risk associated with operating lease contracts is similar to finance leases and is monitored by the Bank in
the same way. Accordingly operating lease assets are included in the disclosures below.

31-Dec-15 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-14
€000 €000 €000 €000
Loans & : Loans & g
Advances to Lec; p:;a;mg t Advances to Lec;g:drf‘lsr;ge i
Customers R S Customers
PD Grade
Pass 1-9 584,163 24,552 377,606 72,268
Special Mention 10-11 58,667 925 41,764 4,434
Substandard 12-15 6,388 317 3,344 10
Doubtful 16 5,522 - 170 =
_Neither Past due nor 654,740 25,794 422,884 76,712
impaired
Pastie burnat 29,654 2173 41,653 1,302
impaired
Impaired 4,500 - 1,026 =
688,894 27,967 465,563 78,014
Specific Provision (4,207) - (874) =
IBNR (2,469) = (2,023) =
682,218 27,967 462,666 78,014
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Past due but not impaired is defined as loan/lease contracts where repayment of principal or interest are
overdue by at least one day but which are not impaired.

Aloan is considered impaired when there is objective evidence of impairment and a specific provision has
been recognised in the income statement, contract classifications are explained below:

Special Mention - Having potential weaknesses that deserve management's close attention. If left
uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may result in the deterioration of the repayment prospects for
the asset or in the institution’s credit position at some future date. Special Mention assets do not expose
an institution to sufficient risk to warrant negative classification.

Substandard - Inadequately protected by the current sound worth and paying capacity of the obligor or
the collateral pledged, if any. Assets so classified must have a well-defined weakness or weaknesses that
jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. They are characterized by the distinct possibility that the institution
will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected.

Doubtful - Has all the weaknesses inherent in one classified Substandard, with the added characteristic
that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of currently existing facts,
conditions, and values, highly questionable and improbable. As at 31 December 2015 the balance reflects
customers which have been restructured during the year and are current with agreed payment terms but
still require management’s close attention. These contracts are not impaired, it has been retained at it's
current PD but expect to be re-graded in due course.

The Bank's Loans to customers and operating lease assets which are past due but not impaired are
analysed into:

31-Dec-15 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-14
€000 €000 €000 €000
Loans & Operating Leased Loans & Operating Leased
Advances to Assets Advances to Assets
Customers Customers
Days Past €'000 €000 €000 €000
Due
1-30 16,181 1,748 18,359 991
31-60 8,245 269 9,339 182
61-90 5312 59 8,111 23
91+ 1,916 97 5,844 106
29,654 2,173 41,653 1,302

For the purposes of disclosures required, the Bank considers it impractical to provide an estimate of the
fair value of the assets held as collateral on those finance leases which are past due or impaired.
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The Bank’s maximum exposure to credit risk by geographic region is set out below:

31-Dec-15 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-14
€000 €000 €000 €'000
Loans and Operating Leased Loans and Operating
Advances to Assets Advances to Leased
Customers Customers Assets
Country by Exposure €000 €000 €000 €000
United Kingdom 199,096 3,881 152,214 12,871
France 96,276 595 58,862 3,473
Germany 92,834 3,441 63,486 8.125
Italy 54,802 122 35,555 1,765
Spain 48,768 810 35,002 3731
Netherlands 40,217 112 23,120 761
Ireland 52,118 2,661 25,700 9,326
Sweden 55,650 14,453 33,368 32,555
Other Countries 49,132 1,892 38,256 5,408
Total 688,893 27,967 465,563 78,015
Provision for Impaired Loans (6,675) - (2,897) -
682,218 27,967 462,666 78,015

(2) Market Risk — FX Risk

Details of the Banks' policies and procedures in relation to the management of market risk are detailed in
Section 4 of the Risk Management report. FX Risk is measured using a conversion factor matrix method,
utilising the CRD IV articulated conversion factors. The Bank has transactional FX Risk in the following
currencies [GBP, USD, CHF, SEK, NOK, PLN and DKK]. The future foreign currency cash-flows are time
bucketed into a maturity ladder and netted against the Bank's FX Forward positions. The FX risk
management model transforms the net un-hedged long or short position by currency into an implied
maximum loss amount. The Risk Conversion Factors ("RCF") are utilized to calculate the exposure by
currency and maturity profile. The total implied FX loss by currency is then converted to a Euro basis and
aggregated. The resulting Euro implied FX loss aggregation is monitored against prescribed risk limits
which are linked to the regulatory capital position on a daily basis.

The FX Risk position during the course of the reporting period was:
2015 2014
€'000 €000

FX Risk position as at 31 December 801 971
Average FX Risk position for the reporting period 1,059 1,148
Maximum FX Risk position during the reporting period 1,722 1,522
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(3) Market Risk — Interest Rate Risk

IRRBB exposure is primarily identified through the use of the standardised interest rate risk framework as
set out by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision. All assets, liabilities and derivatives which are
sensitive to changes in interest rates are slotted into a maturity ladder. The calculation process involves
netting the asset and liability positions in each time band, resulting in a single asset or liability exposure.
The next step is to weight the resulting positions by a factor that is designed to reflect the time band
sensitivity to an assumed change in interest rates. The set of weightings applied are based on an assumed
parallel shift of 200 basis points throughout the time spectrum. The final step is to sum the resulting time
band weighted positions to determine the overall risk on the banking book. The open risk position is then
measured against prescribed risk limits which are linked to the banks regulatory capital on a daily basis.

The Non Traded Interest Rate Risk position during the course of the reporting period was:

2015 2014
€000 €000
200bps upward shock stress scenario as at 31 December 1530 426
Average 200bps upward shock stress scenario for the reporting period 1036 1032
Maximum 200bps upward shock stress scenario during the reporting period 2,140 1,916
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(4) Market Risk — Interest Rate Risk (Interest re-pricing)

The table below sets out the carrying value of interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities and

the earlier of the time periods in which they mature or re-price.

As at 31 December 2015

t in set
Cash and balances with central banks
Cash in Bank

Loans and advances to banks

Loans and advances to customers

Interest i iabiliti
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries
Deposits from Banks
Subordinated liabilities

Interest Rate Swap Nominal:
Pay Fixed

Receive floating

Interest Sensitivity gap

As at 31 December 2014

Inter rin t

Cash and balances with central banks
Cash in Bank
Loans and advances to banks

Loans and advances to customers

Inter ring Liabiliti
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries
Deposits from Banks

Subordinated liabilities

Interest Rate Swap Nomi
Pay Fixed
Receive floating

Interest Sensitivity gap

€'000's €'000's €'000's €'000's €000's €000's
Lessthan 3 3-6mths 6-12 1-5yrs More than 5 years Carrying Value
months months
40,355 - - - - 40,355
46,426 - - B - 46,426
1,259 1,259 2,518 4,030 = 9.066
75,230 79,230 158,459 365,271 28 682,218
167,270 80,489 160,977 369,301 28 778,065
(133,882) - - - - (133,882)
(445,248) = = 2 = (445,248)
(65,072) 5 - : = (65,072)
(644,202) . - = - (644,202)
(10,000) (65,000) (95,000) {220,000) z (390,000)
390,000 - - - : 350,000
380,000 (65.000) (95,000) (220,000} = -
(96,932) 15,489 65,977 149,301 28 133,863
€000's €'000's €000's €000's €000's €000's
Less than 3 3-6mths 6-12 1-5yrs More than 5 years Carrying Value
months months
270 = - - = 270
49,286 - - - - 49,286
1,337 1,327 2.527 4,819 = 10,011
64,096 54,331 94,961 249,055 223 462,666
114,989 55,659 97,488 253,874 223 522,233
(7,545) (170,021) = = = (177.566)
(16,483) (231,336) - . - (247.819)
- (65,153) - = 2 (65,153)
(24,028) (466,510) - - = (490,538)
- C (50,000) (210,000) = (260.000)
- 260,000 = - - 260,000
= 260,000 (50,000) (210,000) . 8
90,961 (150,852) 47,488 43,874 223 31,694
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(5) Liquidity Risk — Financial Liabilities

The tables below summarise the maturity profile of the Bank's financial liabilities at 31 December 2014
and at 31 December 2015 on the basis of its contractual undiscounted repayment obligations. The Bank
does not manage liquidity risk on the basis of contractual maturity. Instead the Bank manages liquidity risk
based on expected cash flows. The balances will not agree directly to the statement of financial position
as the table incorporates all cash flows, on an undiscounted basis, related to both principal and interest
payments. Details of the Banks policies and procedures in relation to management of liquidity risk are

detailed in section 5 of the Risk Management Report.

3-12 Over 5 Gross
As at 31 December 2015 Upta hMtn 1-:3 Mths Mths 1=67%18 Yrs Cashflows
€000 €000 €000 €000 €'000 €000
Financial Liabilities:
Deposits from Banks 42,006 403,452 - R - 445,458
Amounts due to fellow
Sl ibciaTavies (11,133) 330 - 145,663 - 134,860
Other Liabilities 38,182 - - - - 38,182
Subordinated debt - 463 1,390 9,269 67.637 78,759
Residual Value Guarantees 119 111 111 518 - 859
Commitments 40,791 - - - - 40,791
Total cash outflow 109,965 404,356 1,501 155,450 67,637 738,909
Uptol 3-12 ) Over 5 Gross
Mith 1- S Mths 12 Y'S Yrs  Cashflows
€000 €'000 €'000 €000 €000 €'000
Derivative Financial Instruments:
FX Inflows (17) (217) (764) (1,008) B (2.007)
FX Outflows 118 3,610 5,967 23,017 - 32,712
Interest rate swaps - 18 509 (527) - -
Total cash outflow 101 3,411 5,712 21,482 - 30,705

The collateralised loan facility was €600m as at 31 December 2015. In July 2015 the facility increased from
€340m to €600m. The facility has over two years to maturity but rolls and reprices on a quarterly basis.
There was €389.5m drawn on the facility as at 315t December 2015; with €439.8m of encumbered
receivables. The collateralised loan facility reduces the concentration risk of intercompany funding. There
is an undrawn credit facility with respect to the collateralised loan facility of €210.5m as at 31 December
2015.

€145m of the €350m Intercompany loan facility was utilised as at 31 December 2015. A parental guarantee
is in place from Dell Inc. whereby Dell Inc. agrees and acknowledges that, it shall not request and, shall
procure that no affiliate requests, the early repayments or prepayment of any existing committed or
uncommitted intercompany loan funding to the Bank to the extent that the result of such repayment or
prepayment would have the effect of placing the Bank in a position where it would reasonably be
expected to cause the Bank to breach its liquidity requirements.
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3-12 Over 5 Gross
As at 31 December 2014 Hetal Mih 1=amths Mths 1-5Yrs Yrs Cashflows
€000 €000 €000 €'000 €000 €000
Financial Liabilities:
Deposits from Banks 16.483 232,477 - - 248,960
Amounts due to fellow
subsidiaries 7,545 383 170,779 - = 178,707
Other Liabilities 16,646 - - - - 16,646
Subordinated debt - 918 2.754 14,690 77,548 95,910
Residual Value Guarantees 40 239 240 734 - 1253
Commitments 33,319 - - - ) 33,319
Total cash outflow 74,033 234,017 173,773 15,424 77,548 574,795
Uptol 3-12 L Over 5 Gross
Mth -3 Mibs Mths 1o TS Yrs  Cashflows
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
Derivative Financial Instruments:
FX Inflows ) (38,633) (45,583)  (122,644) = (206,860)
FX Outflows ) 40,889 47,866 128,253 ) 217,008
Interest rate swaps - - 122 1,081 - 1,203
Total cash outflow - 2,256 2,405 6,690 - 11,351
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5. Net Interest Income

Year ending Year ending
31 December 2015 31 December 2014*
Restated
€000 €'000
Interest income
Loans and advances to customers
- Loans 2,455 998
- Lease receivables 29,876 22,708
32,331 23,706
Loans and advances to banks
- Loans 127 122
- Lease receivables 385 640
Total Interest income 32,843 24,468
Interest expense
Intercompany loan interest (1,500) (1,813)
Subordinated debt (3,154) (3,845)
Collateralised loan (8,016) (4,261)
Other fees - (97)
Other interest (57) (34)
Total Interest expense (12,727) (10,050)
Total net interest income 20,116 14,418

*The comparative period has been restated to separately disclose "Other Income from end of lease activities " in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

6. Operating Lease Income

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
€000 €000

Operating Lease Income
- Lease to customers 47,372 57,087
- Lease to banks 302 1,033
Total Operating Lease Income 47,674 58,120

7. Net Fee and Commission Income

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
€000 €000
Portfolio and other management fees 487 584
Other fees (152) (128)
Total Net Fee and Commission Income 335 456
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8. Other Income from end of lease activities

Year ended
31 December 2015
€000

Other Income from end of lease activities 8,501

Year ended

31 December 2014*
Restated

€'000

6,250

*The comparative period has been restated to separately disclose "Other Income from end of lease activities " in the Statement of

Comprehensive Income.

9. Net Trading Expense

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

€000 €000

Net realized and unrealized loss on FX derivatives (14,731) (10,825)
Net unrealized loss on Interest rate derivatives (294) (1,008)
Net interest accrual on Interest rate derivatives (984) (416)
Total Net Trading Expense (16,009) (12,249)

Net trading expense includes the gains and losses on financial instruments at fair value through profit or
loss. It includes the gains and losses arising on the purchase and sale of these instruments, the fair value
movement on these instruments and the interest accrual, The Bank economically hedges foreign
exchange risk related to financial assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the Euro. The
Bank uses foreign exchange derivatives to manage its exposure to foreign currency risk and uses interest
rate derivatives to manage exposure to interest rate risk. The derivatives have not been designated in a
qualifying hedge relationship. The nominal amounts and associated fair values of these derivatives are
outlined in Note 21. Profits on the revaluation of the monetary assets are included in other operating

expenses (Note 14).

10. Personnel Expenses

The average number of persons employed during the year was 160 (2014: 175).
The average number of persons employed within each category during the year was:
- IT:9(2014: 10)
- Credit: 8 (2014: 8)
- Finance & Treasury: 32 (2014: 31)
- Legal, Compliance and Risk: 12 (2014: 12)
- Sales & Operations: 99 (2014: 114)
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Total personnel costs comprised of:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

€000 €'000

Wages and salaries 10,375 9,961
Other employee benefits 3,918 3,615
Share based payments (note 32) (486) (36)
Social security costs 1,409 1,396
Pension costs 759 686
Directors’ fees (note 11) 190 245
Total 16,165 15,867

There were no amounts of personnel expenses capitalised into assets in the current year (2014: Nil).
Sales and Operations headcount has decreased from 2014 as the Bank has outsourced some operations
activities to a third party.
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11. Directors’ Remuneration

Directors’ remuneration is comprised of:

Directors’ remuneration for other
services
Fees for services as director
Pensions
Share options exercised
Long-term incentives (cash, shares,
other assets)
Retirement Contributions to:
- defined contributions
schemes
- defined benefit schemes
Termination payments
Retirement benefits of past directors:
- inrespect of services as
director
- inrespect of other services

Total

continued
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
€000 €000
1,758 1,568
190 245
44 23
1,992 1,836

The number of Directors to who retirement contributions are accruing under defined contributions
scheme is Nil (2014: Nil), and defined benefit schemes Nil (2014: Nil).

There were no amounts paid to persons connected with a director in the current year.

12. General and Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses
IT and software costs
Travel and entertainment
Recruitment and training

Total

Year ended

31 December 2015
€000

2,585

1,386

520
85

4,576
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Year ended
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€000

1,850
1,124
422
112
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13. Depreciation and Amortisation

Year ended Year ended
31 December
31 December 2015 2014
€000 €000
Depreciation on own use property plant and
equipment 68 91
(Note 23)
Depreciation and impairment on operating leases
(Note 23) 45,106 50,106
Amortisation of software and other intangible
assets 6,147 5,489
(Note 22)
Impairment of intangible assets - =
Total 51,321 55,686
14. Other Operating Expenses
Year ended Year ended
31 December
31 December 2015 2014
€000 €000
Business support services 2,427 3,945
Consultancy fees 2,945 2,132
Auditors’ remuneration (Note 16) 361 369
Foreign exchange gains (12,042) (10,049)
Total (6,309) (3,603)

The foreign exchange gain for the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 has resulted from the
revaluation of the Bank's monetary assets and liabilities. The Bank economically hedges foreign exchange
risk related to financial assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the Euro.

The Bank uses foreign exchange derivatives to manage its exposure to foreign currency risk. Losses arising
from these derivative contracts are included in net trading expenses (Note 9).
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15. Impairment Charges on Loans and Receivables

Specific IBNR Total
€000 €000 €000
Provision at 1 January 2015 874 2,023 2,897
Charge in statement of comprehensive
eSS 6.450 308 6,758
Recoveries (1,280) - (1,280)
Contracts terminated (1,765) - (1,765)
Exchange adjustments (73) 138 65
Provision at 31 December 2015 4,206 2,469 6,675
Specific IBNR Total
€'000 €000 €000
Provision at 1 January 2014 1,088 477 1,565
_Charge in statement of comprehensive 1.285 1480 2.765
income
Recoveries (309) - (309)
Contracts terminated (1,199) = (1,199)
Exchange adjustments 9 66 75
Provision at 31 December 2014 874 2,023 2,897

All of the above relates to loans and advances to customers under finance leases.
16. Loss before Taxation

The following items are included in the loss before taxation:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

€000 €000

Depregiation on property, plant, equipment and 45174 50,197

operating leases (Note 13)

Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 13) 6,147 5,489

Foreign exchange gains (Note 14) (12,042) (10,049)
Auditors’ remuneration (exclusive of VAT)

- Statutory audit 252 260

- Other assurance services 109 109

- Tax advisory services - -

Other non-audit services = 2

Total auditors’ remuneration (Note 14) 361 369

Other assurance services included audit of the Spanish Branch and assurance services regarding the
Bank's collateralised loan facility.
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17. Income Tax Credit

Current taxes on income for the reporting
period

Irish Corporation tax

Foreign tax

Current taxes referring to previous periods
Reclass between Current and Deferred Taxes
relating to prior period

Withholding tax

Total current tax

Deferred tax

Adjustments for prior periods

Reclass between Current and Deferred Taxes
relating to prior period

Total deferred tax (Note 25)

Income tax credit

The income tax credit comprises the following:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
€000 €000

25 19

14 (13)

462 -

297 595

798 601

(1,240) (1,004)
(362) =

(462) -
(2,064) (1,004)
(1,266) (403)

Further information about deferred income tax is presented in Note 25. The tax on the Bank’s loss
before income tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the basic tax rate of the

Bank as follows:

Loss before income tax

Theoretical tax credit at statutory rate 12.5%
(2014: 12.5%)

Effects of:

— Adjustments for prior periods

— Depreciation in excess of capital allowances
— Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

- Impact of difference in tax rate for Spanish Branch
- Withholding Tax

Income tax credit

55

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014

€'000 €000
(10,614) (6,919)
(1,327) (865)
(348) (183)

97 39

15 T,

297 595

(1,266) (403)
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17. Income Tax Credit — continued

18.

Deferred tax as included on the statement of financial position is as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
€'000 €000

Tax effect of taxable timing differences
Temporary differences (1,448) (366)
Tax losses carried forward (8,005) (7,.023)
Recognised deferred tax asset (9,453) (7,389)

At the end of the reporting period, the Bank had tax losses of €64m available for utilisation against future
operating profits of the business. The Directors are satisfied that the Bank will have sufficient future taxable
profits against which the deferred tax losses can be recognised. Under current Irish tax legislation there
is no time restriction on the utilisation of these losses.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following
balances:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

€000 €000

Cash and balances with central banks 40,355 270
Cash and balances with banks 46,426 49,286
Cash and Cash Equivalents 86,781 49,556

The Bank is required to maintain balances with the Central Bank of Ireland which are disclosed under cash
and balances with central banks in the statement of financial position.

Since the 1st of October 2015 the Central Bank of Ireland introduced the Liquidity Coverage Ratio
(hereafter LCR). The LCR requires banks to hold a minimum amount of high quality liquid assets to
overcome short-term liquidity disruptions in a specified stress scenario over a 30 day period. The Bank
has elected to place cash with the Central Bank of Ireland to address this.

Money market placements and operating cash are presented as loans and advances to banks in the
statement of financial position (Note 19).
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19. Loans and Advances to Banks

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

€000 €000

Cash and balances with banks 46,426 49,286
Included in cash and cash equivalents 46,426 49,286
Loans and advances to banks 5,066 10,011
Less: allowance for impairment - B
Net Loans and Advances to Banks 55,492 59,297

Cash and balances with banks of €46.4m (2014: €49.3m) includes short term money market

placements, with an original maturity of less than three months.

Loans and advances to banks represent finance leases and loans with counterparties holding banking

licences.

Analysis of Loans and Advances to Banks

31 December 2015

31 December

2014
€'000 €000
Finance lease receivables 7,700 8,855
Loans 1,366 1,156
9,066 10,011
Analysis of leases to banks
31 December 2015 1 December 2014
€000 €000
Gross investment in finance leases and hire purchase, receivable;
- Not later than 1 year 4,392 4,872
- Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 3,962 4,702
- Later than 5 years - -
8,354 9,574
Less: unearned finance income on finance lease (654) (719)
Present value of minimum lease payments, receivable 7,700 8,855
The present value of minimum lease payments may be
analysed as.
- Not later than 1 year 3,769 4,532
- Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 3,931 4,323
- Later than 5 years = B
7,700 8,855
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20. Loans and Advances to Customers

Year ended

Year ended
31 December 2015 4l.December
2014
€000 €000
Finance lease receivables 534,171 393,198
Hire purchase receivables 50,752 30,045
Loans 103,970 42,320
688,893 465,563
Less: allowance for impairment (6,675) (2,897)
Net Loans and Advances to Customers 682,218 462,666

Analysis of Loans and Advances to Customers

Loans and advances to customers include finance lease and hire purchase receivables as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
€000 €000
Gross investment in finance leases and hire purchase, receivable:
- Not later than 1 year 285,381 204,144
- Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 332,999 254,064
- Later than 5 years 26 14
618,406 458,222
Less: unearned finance income on finance lease (33.483) (84,273
Present value of minimum lease payments, receivable 584,925 423,243
The present value of minimum lease payments may be analysed as follows:
- Not later than 1 year 259,081 190,479
- Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 325,820 232,752
- Later than 5 years 22 12
584,923 423,243
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
€000 €000
Gross investment in loans receivable:
- Not later than 1 year 49,911 18,854
- Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 54,059 23,466
- Later than 5 years . -
103,970 42,320

There were €439.8m of encumbered receivables as at 31 December 2015 (2014: €275m) relating to the
Secured Loan Facility (Note 28).
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21. Derivative Financial Instruments

Fair value of derivative financial instruments
FX derivatives
Interest rate swaps

Total derivative financial instrument asset

FX derivatives
Interest rate swaps

Total derivative financial instrument liabilities

Year ended Year ended

31 December

31 December 2015 by
€'000 €000

2,021 794

(1,680) (1,335)

(17,746) (12,262)

The loans and advances to banks and customers have been economically hedged by using interest rate
swaps as part of a macro interest rate risk management strategy. The Bank economically hedges foreign
exchange risk related to financial assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the Euro. The
Bank uses foreign exchange derivatives to manage its exposure to foreign currency risk and uses interest
rate derivatives to manage exposure to interest rate risk. The derivatives have not been designated in a
qualifying hedge relationship. However, they do form part of economic hedge relationships.

As at 31 December 2015, the notional principal amounts, by residual maturity of Interest rate derivatives

were as follows:

Notional Less than Between Mare
AT LeHE 1 year and than
y 5 years 5 years
€'000
Interest Rate Derivatives
Interest rate swaps 390,000 170,000 220,000 B
Total Notional of Interest Rate 390,000 170,000 220,000 )
Swaps
As at 31 December 2014, the notional principal amounts, by residual maturity, of Interest rate derivatives
were as follows:
; Between More
Notional Less-i than 1 year and et
Amount year S years 5 years
€000
Interest Rate Derivatives
Interest rate swaps 260,000 50,000 210,000 5
Total Notional of Interest Rate 260,000 50,000 210,000 .

Swaps
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As at 31 December 2015, the notional principal amounts, by residual maturity, of Foreign exchange

derivatives were as follows:

. Less Between More
I:otlonal than 1 year and than
mount
1year S years S years
€000

Foreign Exchange Derivatives
FX forward derivatives 281,341 152,483 128,858 =
Total Notional of Foreign Exchange 281,341 152,483 128,858 _

Derivatives

As at 31 December 2014, the notional principal amounts, by residual maturity, of Foreign exchange

derivatives were as follows:

Notichal Less Between More
than 1 year and than
Amount
1year 5 years 5 years
€000
Foreign Exchange Derivatives
FX forward derivatives 206,859 84,215 122,644 -
Total Notional of Foreign Exchange 206.859 84.215 122 644 _

Derivatives

The below table analyses derivative financial instruments measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period by the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorised as at 31 December
2015. The fair value of the below over the counter derivatives is calculated using discounted cash flow
valuation technigues which use observable market data such as foreign exchange and interest rates and

quoted ask market prices.

€000 Total Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Fair value of Derivative financial

instruments

FX Derivatives (14,045) - (14,045) -
Interest Rate Swaps (1,680) - (1,680) -
Fair value of Derivative financial )
instruments as at 31 December 2015 (15.725) B (15,725)

€000 Total Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Fair value of Derivative financial

instruments

FX Derivatives (10,132) - (10,132) -
Interest Rate Swaps (1,336) - (1,336) -
Fair value of Derivative financial (11,468) ) (11,468) _

instruments as at 31 December 2014
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22. Intangible Assets

Other
Intangible Assets under
Assets
Goodwill (Externally Software construction Total
Purchased)
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000
Costs
Balance at 1 January 2015 13,226 7121 24,158 315 44,820
Additions / Internally
developed - - - 1,826 1,826
Deletions / Disposals - = = B -
Transfer - - (70) 70 -
Balance at 31 December 13,226 7,121 24,088 2,211 46,646
2015
Accumulated Amortisation
Balance at 1 January 2015 - (1.023) (6,834) - (7.857)
Charge for the year = (722) (5,425) - (6,147)
Deletions / Disposals - - - a B
Balance at 31 December } (1,745) (12,259) . (14,004)
2015
Net book value at 31
' . ; 2,211 2.642
Decaribai 2015 13,226 5,376 11,829 32,64

Intangible assets and goodwill were recognised as a result of the acquisition in 2013. There was no
increase in intangible assets during the year.

Goodwill is reviewed annually for impairment, or more frequently when there are indications that
impairment may have occurred. In line with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets, we have completed a
quantitative goodwill impairment exercise. There was no impairment identified for the financial year
ended 31 December 2015.

The transfer from assets under construction to software relates to the systems that the Bank developed
to support its ongoing activities.
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Other
Intangible Assets under
Assets
Goodwill (Externally Software construction Total
Purchased)
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000
Costs
Balance at 1 January 2014 13,226 7120 19,442 406 40,194
Additions / Internally
developed - - 4,310 314 4,626
Transfer - - 406 (406) =
o A SEEIEE 13,226 7,120 24,158 314 44,820
Accumulated Amortisation
Balance at 1 January 2014 = (190) (2,178) - (2,368)
Charge for the year - (833) (4,656) . (5,489)
Balance at 31 December } (1,023) (6.834) _ (7.857)
2014
Net book value at 31
December 2014 13,226 6,097 17,324 314 36,963
23. Property, Plant and Equipment
Leased Computer
Equipment Equipment Total
€000 €000 €000
Cost
Balance at 1 January 2015 130,680 255 130,935
Additions 410 - 410
Additions — own use - 34 34
Disposal of operating lease equipment (34,832) - (34,832)
Dlsposal of own use computer i (17) (17)
equipment
Balance at 31 December 2015 96,258 272 96,530
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1 January 2015 (52,665) (183) (52,847)
Additions — provisions - = &
Charge for the year (45,106) (68 (45,174)
Disposal of operating lease equipment 29,480 - 29,480
Disposal of own use computer B 17 17
equipment
Balance at 31 December 2015 (68,291) (234) (68,525)
Net book value at 31 December 2015 27,967 38 28,005
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Leased equipment cost analysed as follows:

On operating lease for periods:

- Not later than 1 year

- Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
- Later than 5 years

Total

Future minimum lease payments analysed as follows:

31 December

31 December

2015 2014
€000 €'000
84,247 95,714
12,011 34,966
96,258 130,680

31 December

31 December

2015 2014
€000 €'000
On operating lease for periods:
- Not later than 1 year 20,171 38,876
- Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 8.785 16,784
- Later than 5 years % -
Total 28,956 55,660
Leased Computer
Equipment Equipment Total
€000 €000 €'000
Cost
Balance at 1 January 2014 122,708 244 122,951
Additions from portfolio acquisition 28,681 - 28,681
Additions - own use - 18 18
Disposal of operating lease equipment (20,709) ) (20,709)
Disposal of own use computer . 7) 7
equipment
Balance at 31 December 2014 130,680 255 130,934
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1 January 2014 (17,007) (100) (17,107)
Charge for the year (50.,106) (90) (50,196)
Disposal of operating lease equipment 14,448 7 14,455
Balance at 31 December 2014 (52,665) (183) (52,847)
Net book value at 31 December 2014 78,015 72 78,087
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24, Current Income Tax Assets

Current income tax assets

Total current income tax assets

Current income tax assets:

- Current tax asset to be recovered within 1 year
- Current tax asset to be recovered after more
than 1 year

25. Deferred Income Tax Assets and Liabilities

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
€000 €'000

161 69

161 69

161 69

The movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

Opening Balance

Income statement credit (Note 17)

At 31 December

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
€000 €'000
7,389 6,385
2,064 1,004
9,453 7,389

Deferred income tax assets are attributable to the following items:

Tax losses carried forward
Temporary differences
Other provisions

Total deferred income tax assets

Deferred tax assets to be recovered within 12
months

Deferred tax assets to be recovered after 12
months

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
€000 €000
8,005 7.023
1,448 366
9,453 7,389
9,453 7,389



26.

27.

28.

Dell Bank International d.a.c.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —

Other Assets

VAT receivable
Prepayments
Other debtors

Total other assets

Other assets are analysed as follows:
Within 1 year
After 1 year

Pension Costs

continued
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
€000 €000
37,836 31,843
1,875 1,222
10,508 10,549
50,219 43,614
47,814 38,871
2,405 4,743
50,219 43,614

The pension entitlements of certain employees arise under a defined contribution pension scheme and
are secured by contributions by the Bank to a separately administered pension fund. Annual contributions
are charged to the income statement on an accruals basis. The cost to the Bank for the year was €0.8m

(2014: €0.7m).

The total amount owing to the pension scheme at 31 December was €Nil (2014: €Nil).

Deposits from Banks

Secured funding
Multi-Currency Notional Pool
Time deposits

Deposits from Banks

31 December

31 December

2015 2014
€000 €000
390,226 218,333
42,006 16,483
13,016 13,003
445,248 247,819

Secured funding represents the drawn amount of the collateralised loan facility with external parties. Dell
Global B.V is acting as guarantor for this Loan which is secured by receivables. In April 2015 an amended
facility agreement was signed extending the facility to 14" of February 2018. In July 2015 the facility

increased from €340m to €600m.

Time deposits are short term contractual deposits from bank counterparties with a maturity of 6 months

or less.

The Bank signed a notional pooling agreement in August 2014. The Bank's access to the funds in the
notional pool is reliant on cash being made available by other Dell entities to support the drawdown within
the facility. Dell Bank has access to draw funds from the pool but will not contribute to the pool.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

29. Other Liabilities

Accounts payable
Creditors and accruals

Income tax deducted under PAYE/PRSI

Value added tax
Deferred income

Total other liabilities

Other liabilities are analysed as follows:

Within 1 year
After 1 year

30. Subordinated Debt

Subordinated Loan
Accrued interest payable

Total Subordinated Liabilities

Subordinated Loan
Accrued interest payable

Total Subordinated Liabilities

Reference rate

3mth Euro Libor

Reference rate

3mth Euro Libor

31 December 2015

31 December

2014

€000 €000
17,774 5,330
4,386 3,106
259 690

91 151

15,833 7,439
38,343 16,716
38,111 16,648
232 68
38,343 16,716
Maturity 31-Dec-15
€'000

June 2023 65,000
72

65,072

Maturity 31-Dec-14
€'000

June 2023 65,000
153

65,153

The subordinated loan agreement was amended on the 15" of September 2015 whereby the interest rate
has changed from Euro LIBOR plus 560Bps to Euro LIBOR plus 280 Bps. The Bank’s dated subordinated
notes are repayable in 2023 in full. The Bank has not had any defaults of principal, interest or other
breaches with respect to their liabilities during the year. The loan is subordinated to other debt held. The
Bank's subordinated debt is issued to DGBV, the parent company of DFS BV.
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32.

Dell Bank International d.a.c.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -

Equity and Reserves

Share capital
Capital contribution
Other reserves
Retained earnings

Total equity reserve

Share capital

continued

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
€000 €000

50,000 50,000

217,500 177,500

- 9

(67,224) (57,876)

200,276 169,633

The Bank has authorised ordinary share capital of 50,000,001 (2014: 50,000,001) at a value of €1 each.

All the ordinary shares are fully paid.

Capital contribution

Capital contributions represent the receipt of non-demandable considerations arising from transactions
with the parent company, DFS BV. The contributions are classified as equity and may be either
distributable or non-distributable. Capital contributions are distributable if the assets received are in the
form of cash or another asset that is readily convertible to cash. Otherwise, they are treated as non-

distributable.

The parent entity of Bank has made an additional capital contribution of €40,000,000 on 24 July 2015

(2014: €177,500,000).

The Bank did not declare a dividend on its share capital during the year (2014: nil).

Share Options

The Bank recognised total expenses of Nil (2014: €Nil) on Share Based Payments related to Denali options

in the year.

Details of the movement in the Denali share options during the year:

Denali options outstanding at 31
December 2014

Transfer in and out of equity
Granted in the year
Cancelled in the year

Outstanding at 31 December 2015

Exercisable at 31 December 2015

Number of € Weighted
Options Average
Exercise Price

795 11.38

Aggregate
Weighted
Average
Option Value
€000
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Dell Bank International d.a.c.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

The following tables summarise information about the above share options at 31 December 2015:

Number € Weighted Weighted
Outstanding at 31 Average Remaining
December 2015 Exercise Price Contractual
Outstanding Life
Range of exercise price
$0.00 - $19.99 - - .
$20.00 - $29.99 - - -
$30.00 - $39.99 - - -
Over $40.00 - - -
Outstanding at 31 December 2015 " - =
Number € Weighted Weighted
Exercisable at Average Remaining
31 December Exercise Price Contractual
2015 Life
Exercisable
Range of exercise price
$0.00 - $19.99 - - %
$20.00 - $29.99 = o =
$30.00 - $39.99 - = -
Over $40.00 - . -
Outstanding at 31 December 2015 - a -

33. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
Contingent liabilities
The Bank has appealed an assessment from a revenue authority in one jurisdiction within which the
Bank operates. The Bank considers that is has a robust position in relation to the matter, the outcome of

which is currently uncertain. The Bank's maximum exposure is €988k.

The Bank has committed to future minimum payments in respect of non-cancellable agreements as

follows:
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
€000 €'000
Residual value guarantees 858 1,254
858 1,254
Not later than 1 year 340 519
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 518 735

Later than 5 years - =

The residual value guarantees relate to agreements in place with third party vendors.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

Commitments
The Bank had off balance sheet financial commitments to customers as well as maintenance fees

associated with the regulatory reporting software as follows:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

€000 €000

Lease funding commitments 40,791 33,319
Other commitments - -
40,791 33,319

Not later than 1 year 40,791 33.319

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years -
Later than 5 years -

34. Immediate and Ultimate Parent Undertaking

The Bank’s immediate parent undertaking is DFS BV, a Company incorporated in the Netherlands, with a
registered office at Transformatorweg 38-72, 1014 AK Amsterdam, Netherlands.

The Bank's ultimate parent undertaking is Denali Holding Inc., a private company with a registered office
at 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington Road DE 19801, USA.
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35.

a)

b)

Dell Bank International d.a.c.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

Related party transactions

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability to control the other party, is under common control, or can exercise significant influence over the
other party in making financial or operational decisions. In considering each possible related party
relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, not merely the legal form. Related
party transactions are on terms equivalent to arm’s length transactions.

Loans and advances to related parties

Loans outstanding at 1 January
Loans issued during the year
Loan repayments during the year

Loans outstanding at 31 December

Interest income earned

Loans from related parties

Loans outstanding at 1 January
Loans issued during the year
Loan repayments during the year

Loans outstanding at 31 December

Interest expense paid

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
€000 €000

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
€000 €000

170,021 217,538

60,000 -

(85,007) (47,517)

145,014 170,021

1,499 1,869

The Bank initially received long term borrowings from an affiliate, Dell Global BV of €250m during the
year 2013 and repaid €32.5m in that year. The Bank has borrowed an additional of €60m during the
current year. The Bank has also repaid €85m during the year (2014:€47.5m). All interest expense paid is
in respect of long term borrowings. An amendment to the revolving term loan agreement agreed on 10t

June 2015 provided for an increase in available credit from €300m to €350m.

The subordinated loan entered into June 2013 bear’s interest at rates fixed in advance for periods of
three months. The Bank's dated subordinated notes are repayable in 2023 in full. The Bank has not had
any defaults of principal, interest or other breaches with respect to their liabilities during the year. The
loan is subordinated to other debt held. The Bank's subordinated debt is issued by DGBV, the parent
company of DFS BV. An amendment to the subordinated loan agreement issued on 7" September 2015
and effective from 15" September reduced the fixed element of interest charged on the loan from

5.60% to 2.80%.
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d)

Dell Bank International d.a.c.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

35. Related Party Transactions — continued

The Bank also entered into day to day transactions with other Dell group companies, mainly comprising
the purchase of lease equipment and recharges of other various costs incurred on the Bank’s behalf,
allocation charges for facilities and other operating costs, inclusive of an arm’s length mark up. All

amounts are interest free to the extent that settlements are made on time.

The allocation charges and other recharges during the year analysed as:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

€000 €000

Recharges outstanding at 1 January 7,545 9,954
Purchases of equipment 269,007 280,683
Recharges during the year (Other) (11,133) 7,545
Payments during the year (276,552) (290,637)
Balances outstanding at 31 December (11,133) 7.545
Loans outstanding at 31 December 133,881 177,566

Transaction with Directors and Key Management Personnel

Except for the compensation information detailed below, the Bank did not enter into any transactions and
arrangements during the year with either key management personnel or companies controlled by key
management personnel. Key management personnel are those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly,
including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of that entity.

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

€'000 €000

Salaries and other short term employee benefits 4,142 3,235
Directors fees 190 245
Post-employment benefits 118 77
Other long term benefits 5 -
Termination benefits = =
Share-based payments < =
Total key management compensation 4,450 3,557

For the purposes of IAS 24: Related Party Disclosures, key management personnel of 13 (2014:18)
comprise the Directors and other key management of the Bank.

Loans and deposits transactions with directors, key management and connected persons.

There were no loans, deposits, quasi-loans, credit transactions, guarantees or security entered into or
agreed to enter into by the Bank with or for it's directors, key management and connected persons in
the current year. There were no assignments or assumptions by the Bank of any rights, obligations or
liabilities under a transaction, and no arrangements under which another person enters into transaction
which, if it had been entered into by the Bank would have fallen into section 307(1) or 307(2) of the

Companies Act, 2014.
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Dell Bank International d.a.c.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities

The fair value of a financial instrument is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
Where possible, the Bank calculates fair value using observable market prices. Where market prices are
not available, fair values are determined using valuation techniques which may include discounted cash
flow models or comparisons to instruments with characteristics either identical or similar to those of the
instruments held by the Bank or of recent arm’s length market transactions. These fair values are classified
within a three level fair value hierarchy, based on the inputs used to value the instrument. Where the inputs
might be categorised within different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the fair value measurement is
categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is
significant to the entire measurement. The levels are defined as:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

A description of the methods and assumptions used to calculate fair values of these assets and liabilities
is set out below.

(a) Financial assets and financial liabilities recognised and subsequently measured at fair value

Derivative financial instruments
Note 21 details the fair value assessment of derivative financial instruments.

(b) Financial assets and liabilities held at amortised cost

For financial assets and financial liabilities which are not subsequently measured at fair value in the
statement of financial position, the Bank discloses their fair value in a way that permits them to be
compared to their carrying amounts.

Cash and Balances at Central Banks
The estimated fair value of cash and balances at Central Banks is the amount repayable on demand.

Loans and Advances

Loans and advances to banks and loans and advances to customers are carried net of provisions for
impairment. Loans and advances are initially recognised at fair value, which is the cash consideration to
originate or purchase the loan including any transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method. The fair value of loans and advances to customers is
calculated by discounting expected cash flows. The observable input is the 3 month Euribor rate.

The estimated fair value of money market placements and operating cash is the amount repayable on
demand.

The fair value assessment excludes leasing transactions as per IAS 17.
Subordinated Liabilities
The subordinated debt is recorded at level 2, as the observable input is 3 month Euro Libor adjusted for

relevant credit default swap prices.

The fair value of the subordinated debt has been calculated using the appropriate reference rate at the
balance sheet date.

72
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued

36. Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities — continued

Amounts due to Fellow Subsidiaries

The Intercompany Loan is recorded at level 2, as the observable input is 3 month Euro Libor adjusted for
relevant credit default swap prices. The remaining balance is also recorded at level 2, as there are no
unobservable inputs.

The following table presents the Bank's financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31
December 2015 and 2014.

See Note 21 for further information on the disclosures of derivatives that are measured at fair value.

73



vl

SISEJ] L] SV JO 2d0IS 9y} UIJIM SUOIJIBSUEI] SUISEI] SOPN[IXY]

LYP'T99 - Lb¥'199 - Lt 199 TOL'EY9 Ot/L'LT
18¢°¢¢T = 18¢°¢ST = 182°¢ST 18¢°¢ST & SalIBIPISNS MOjj24 O} 2np sjunouly
2.0'S9 = 2L0'S9 = 2,069 2L0'S9 # Saljligen pajeuipiognsg
8Fe'svi = 8¥e'Siv = Bve'St 8t2'St - syueq Aq sysodaQ
anjeA Jiey Je painsealu Jou sanijiqel) jeidueuly
089'T - 0891 - 0891 = 089'T S2AIBALIBD 2)el 1Salaju|
99097 = 99091 = 99091 = 99091 saAneAlap el abueyoxy
S)UBWINIISUL |BIDUBUL) BAINBALIS(
an)|eA iiey Je painseaw sanljiqel) jeloueul
rAVAVA 4% = LSE'L0T SSe'0v r4 YAVA 4 T69'SHT 1202
0/6'¢01 & 0/46°¢0T = 046'¢0T 0/6'¢€0T = ¥ 518W0]SND O] S8dUBAPE pUB SUBOT
99¢'T = 99¢'T = 99¢7T 99¢'T s x SHUEQ O} S8dUBApPE pue sueo’
SGE0Y o = SGL'0F GGe0f SSE0F - sjueq jeljuad Je Seduejeq pue ysed
aNnjeA liej Je PaINSeaLu JOu S}asSe [eIdueuly
- - - - - - - SOAIJBALIDP 9)BJ }S2I91U|
12072 - 120°2 - 1202 . 1202 saAneALap el abueydx3
SjUBLINIISUI |BIDUBULY BAINRALIB(]
aN)eA 11ey }e palnseaL s3asse jeloueul
000.> 000.3 000.> 000.> 000.> 000.> 000.>
1101 B AL 11927 12101 }50D pasijlowe 3y anjena ey 1y

Ayoiesaly anjea Jie4

uonisod jeidueUly JO JUILWI)E)S Ul Junowe buikiied

'GT0Z 12qWiada( ISTE 1 S31}I|Iqe!) pue S)asse jeIdueul) 8y) JO JUBWSSASSe aNnjeA Jiey pue yunowe buiAued ayy 1no s)as aqe) Buimo)oy ay

panunuod — SINJIWILVLS TVIDONVNI4 JHL OL S3LON

'3"e’p |euoneuIdju| yueq 112



SL

S3SE3| L] SV JO ad03S 3y} UI}IA SUOIJIBSUE.I) SUISEI] SOPN[IXY

£06'20S - £0620S - 008°20S 8¢5'06% 29e'el
99G°/LT = 99G'/LT - 99G'//L1 99G°LLT = S911BIPISNS MOJ|9) 0} anp sjunouly
962's9 & 962’59 = ¢GT'S9 ¢GT'S9 = sallljigel) pajeulpiogns
618'Lve - 6I8'Lb2 - 618'L¥2 618'LY2 - syueq Aq sysodaQ
an|eA Jiej Je painsealw jou sajijiqer) |eldueul
9¢¢T = 9¢¢'T = 9¢¢T = 9¢¢'T SBAIBALIDP B)BJ }Sala1U|
926°01 = 9¢2¢6'01 ) 926'01 - 9¢6'01 saAleAllap a1el abueyoxy
SJUBLINIISUI J_IDURUIL BAIRALIDQ
anjeA Jiej je painseaw saiyjiqer) jeIoueul
£29°L6 = £G¢'/6 042 928'¢6 2¢0°¢6 v6L
/TT'9% - /119 - 0252y 02s'2h - » SIBWIOISND 0] S3DUBAPE pUe SUeOoT
Zv¥'0s = ery’0S = ¢ 0S Zvy'0s - x SHUEQ O] sadueApe pue Sueo’
042 - - 0.2 0.2 0/2 = Syueq |eJIudd 1. Sadue|eq pue ysed
anjeA Jiej je painsealu Jou 5}asSe |eIdueuly
- - - = . - . SDAIBALISP 3184 1S3I3)U|
6L s v6l = 474 = 6L saAlleAlap a)el abueyox3
SJUBLUNIISUI [BIDUBULY SAIPALIS(
anjenA Jiej je painsealw $}asse |e1oueul
000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3
12101 SI9A3T  Z1eAe] T |oAdT 1|10 150D pasijiowe 3y anjea aiey 3y

Ayoieiaiy anjea 1ieq uonisod jedueuly Jo Juawle)s ul Junowe buikue)

{pT0Z 19quiada ISTS 1B SaNM|Igel] PUe S13sSe |ejDUBUl) 9U) JO JUSLISSISSE anjeA Jiej pue junoule buiAlied ayy 1no s)as ajqey buimoyo) ay

panunRuod — SINIWILVLS TVIDONVNI4 IHL OLSILON

"2'B'P |EUO[BUIBIU| Yueg 112q



37.

Dell Bank International d.a.c.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The disclosures set out in the tables below include financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject
to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement that covers similar financial
instruments, irrespective of whether they are offset in the statement of financial position.

The Bank has a number of ISDA Master Agreements (netting agreements) in place which allows it to net
the termination values of derivative contracts upon the occurrence of an event of default with respect

to its counterparties.

The following tables show financial assets and financial liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceable
master netting arrangements and similar agreements at 31 December 2015:

Financial Assets
Derivatives with Positive Fair
Value

Total

Financial Liabilities
Derivatives with Negative Fair
Value

Total

Total

Financial Assets
Derivatives with Positive Fair
Value

Total

Financial Liabilities
Derivatives with Negative Fair
Value

Total

Total

31-Dec-15 31-Dec-15
€000 €000
Gross Amount Presented in Net Amount with Offsetting
Statement of Financial Position applied
€000 €000
2,021 -
2,021 -
(17,746) (15,725)
(17,746) (15,725)
(15,725) (15,725)
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-14
Gross Amount Presented in Net Amount with Offsetting
Statement of Financial Position applied
€000 €000
794 =
794 &
(12,262) (11,468)
(12,262) (11,468)
(11,468) (11,468)
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39.

Dell Bank International d.a.c.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

Events after the Reporting Year

There were no material events subsequent to the year-end which would have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Under the Companies Act 2014, the Bank converted to a type of corporate structure called a “designated
activity company”. From the 1st February 2016, after approval from the Companies Registration Office,
the new name of the Bank is "Dell Bank International Designated Activity Company.”

Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2016.
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